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REPORT ON REVIEW OF THE UNCONSOLIDATED INTERIM FINANCIAL INFORMATION

To the General Assembly of Destek Yatimm Bankas1 Anonim Sirketi

Introduction

We have reviewed the accompanying unconsolidated balance

i

ation of the Report on Review of the Interim Financial Information Originally Issued in

sheet of Destek Yatrim Bankasi Anonim Sirketi (“the

Bank”) as at 31 March 2025, and the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss, unconsolidated statement of profit or loss

and other comprehensive income, unconsolidated statement of changes in

equity and unconsolidated statement of cash

flows for the three-month period then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
notes. The Bank management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the accompanying unconsolidated

interim financial information in accordance with “the Banking Regulation and Supervision Agency (the
“The Procedures and Principles Regarding

Accounting and Financial Reporting Regulations” including the regulation on

Banks® Accounting Practices and Maintaining Documents” published in the Official Gazette dated 1 Novem

“BR.SA”)

ber 2006 with

No. 26333, and other regulations on accounting records of banks published by the Banking Regulation and Supervision

Board and circulars and pronouncements published by the BR

SA and Turkish Accounting Standard 34 “Interim Financial

Reporting” principles for the matters not legislated by the aforementioned regulations. Our responsibility is to express a

conclusion on this unconsolidated interim financial information based on our review.

Scope of Review

We conducted our review in accordance with the Independent Auditing Stand
of Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity”

information consists of making inquiries, primarily of persons responsible for financial reporting process,
financial information is substantially less in scope than an

tandards and the objective of which is to express
review of the interim financial information does not provide

analytical and other review procedures. A review of interim
independent audit conducted in accordance with Independent Auditing S
an opinion on the financial statements. Consequently, a

ard on Review Engagements 2410, “Review
. A review of interim financial

and applying

assurance that the audit firm will be aware of all significant matters which would have been identified in an audit.

Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion.
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Conclusion

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that accompanying unconsolidated interim

financial information does not present fairly, in all material respects, th

e financial position of Destek Yatirim Bankast

Anonim Sirketi as at 31 March 2025, and of the results of its operations and its cash flows for the three-month period then

ended in accordance with the BRSA Accounting and Financial Reporting Regulations.

Emphasis of Matter

In accordance with the decision of the Banking Regulation and Supervision Agency on 17 February 2022 and numbered
10096, the provisions of the Bank will be replaced by the 10th, 11th, 13th and 15th of the Regulation instead of TFRS 9.
In this context, the Bank did not apply the provisions of TFRS 9 effective as of 1 January 2018 regarding the measurement
of provision. Accordingly, Destek Yatirim Bankas1 Anonim Sirketi applied the provisions of article numbered 9 and sub-
paragraph numbered 6 within the framework of the “Regulation on the Procedures and Principles Regarding the
Classification of Loans and the Provisions to be Set aside” with the decision of the Banking Regulation and Supervision

Board.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attenti
information provided in the interim activity report included in section eig
statements, is not presented fairly, in all material respects, and is not consist
financial statements and the explanatory notes.

Giireli Yeminli Mali Miisavirlik ve Bagimsiz Denetim Hizmetleri A.S.
An Independent Member of BAKER TILLY INTERNATIONAL

o

Partner
istanbul, 5 May 2025
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CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION OF
THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND RELATED DISCLOSURES
TOGETHER WITH INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REVIEW REPORT
ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH

UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL REPORT OF

DESTEK YATIRIM BANKASI ANONIM SIRKET]
AS OF AND FOR THE THREE-MONTH PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

Address : Esentepe Mah. Biiyiikdere Cad. Ferko Signature No:175 Kat:26 Sisli/Istanbul
Telephone 102123715500

Fax 102123715591

Website : www.destekbank.com.tr

E-mail - destekbank@hs02 kep.tr

The unconsolidated financial report for the three-months which is prepared in accordance with the
“Communiqué Related to Publicly Announced Financial Statements of Banks and Explanations and Notes
Related to these Financial Statements™ as regulated by the Banking Regulation and Supervision Agency

includes the following sections.

¢ GENERAL INFORMATION

e UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

¢ EXPLANATIONS ON ACCOUNTING POLICIES

o INFORMATION RELATED TO FINANCIAL POSITION AND RISK MANAGEMENT OF THE BANK

o INFORMATION AND DISCLOSURES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e OTHER EXPLANATIONS
o INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REVIEW REPORT
¢ EXPLANATIONS ON INTERIM ACTIVITY REPORT

The accompanying unconsolidated financial statements and notes to these unconsolidated financial statements
for the three-month period which are expressed, unless indicated otherwise, in thousands of Turkish Lira (TL).
have been prepared based on the accounting books of the Bank in accordance with the Regulation on
Accounting Applications for Banks and Safeguarding of Documents, Turkish Accounting Standards, Turkish
Financial Reporting Standards, and the related appendices and interpretations on these, and have been

independently reviewed.

Altung Kumova Ozgiir Akayoglu Kerim Tosun Ali Erdem Neseli
Chairman of the Board Member of the Board and Deputy General Financial Management and
General Manager Manager of Financial Reporting Director
Management
Accounting
Hakan Coskun Siileyman Tiiretken

Member of the Board and Audit Vice Chairman of the Board and
Committee Member Audit Committee Member

Contact information of the personnel in charge of addressing questions regarding this financial report is as

follows:
Name-Surname/Title - Ali Erdem Neseli/Financial Management and Reporting Director

Phone 102123715500
Fax 10212371 5591
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CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION OF THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH

DESTEK YATIRIM BANKASI ANONIM SIRKETI

NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS OF AND FOR THE

INTERIM PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2025
(Amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL") unless otherwise indicated.)

SECTION ONE

General Information
History of the Bank including its incorporation date, initial legal status and amendments to legal

status

Destek Yatirim Bankast Anonim Sirketi (“Destek Yatirim Bankast™ or the “Bank”) was established in
accordance with the decision of Banking Regulation and Supervision Board on 4 February 2021 and
numbered 9412, and the decision was published in the Official Gazette on 12 J uly 2021 with the initial

authorized share capital amounting to TL 300.000.

The Bank carried out its operations to obtain an operating permit from the Banking Regulation and
Supervision Agency in accordance with the provisions of the legislation in force following the
establishment and registration procedures. Accordingly, the Bank was authorised to start operations with
the decision of the Banking Regulation and Supervision Board on 6 January 2022 and numbered 10024.
The relevant authorisation was published in the Official Gazette on 8 January 2022 and numbered 31713.
The Bank started its operations on 25 February 2022 after the authorisation granted by the Banking

Regulation and Supervision Agency (“BRSA™).

The Bank is considered as “Development and Investment Bank” according to the classification in the
Banking Law No. 5411 and the Bank has no authority to have bank deposits and relevant transactions.
I1. Explanation about the Bank’s capital structure, shareholders holding directly or indirectly,
collectively or individually, the management and controlling power and changes in current year,
if any and explanations on the controlling group of the Bank

As of 31 March 2025, the current paid-in share capital of Destek Yatirim Bankas! is amounting to TL
600 million (31 December 2024: TL 600 million). The paid-in share capital is divided into 600 million
outstanding shares each with a nominal amount of TL 1.

As of 31 March 2025, the principal shareholders and their respective sharcholding rates in Destek
Yatirim Bankast are as follows:

Paid-in

share Unpaid
Shareholders Amount Share (%) capital share capital
Destek Finans Faktoring A.S. 599.999 99.99996 599.999.996 .
Altung Kumova 0,001 0.00001 1 -
Ozgir Akayoglu 0,001 0.00001 1 -
Kerim Tosun 0,001 0.00001 1 -
Azem Can Kumova 0,001 0.00001 1 B
Total share capital 600.000 100.00  600.000.000 -
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CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION OF THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH

DESTEK YATIRIM BANKASI ANONIM SIRKETI

NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS OF AND FOR THE

INTERIM PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2025
(Amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL™) uniess otherwise indicated.)
Explanations regarding the board of directors, members of the audit committee, chief executive

officer and executive vice presidents and their areas of responsibility and shares if any

Date of
Name and Surname Duty Education appointment
Altung Kumova Chairman of the Board Bachelor’s Degree 27.03.2024
Siileyman Taretken Member of the Board, Vice Chairman of the Board, Audit Committe Member Bachelor's Degree 14.03.2023
TThami Kog Member of the Board Bachelor’s Degree 25.11.2024
Hakan Cogkun Member of the Board. Audit Committe Member Master's Degree 27.03.2024
Ozgiir Akayoglu General Manager and Member of the Board Master's Degree 27.03.2024
Kerim Tosun Assistant General Manager — Financial Management and Accounting Bachelor's Degree 04.08.2021
Levent Arslan Assistant General Manager — Operations Department Bachelor's Degree 04.082021
Mustafa Ertan Tannyakul Assistant General Manager - Treasury and Finance Department Bachelor's Degree 06.12.2021
Tevfik Kemal Ozcan Assistant General Manager — IT Department Master’s Degree 02.04,2024
Yasemin Safak Dilgen Assistant General Manager — Corporate and Commercial Banking Master’s Degree 02.12.2024

Chairman of the Board of Directors Altung Kumova and Board Member and General Manager Ozgiir
Akayoglu and Assistant General Manager Kerim Tosun have a direct share of TL | each representing

the Bank's share capital.
The abovementioned other persons do not own any shares in the Bank.
Information on the individual and corporate sharcholders having control shares of the Bank
Paid-in share Unpaid share
Amount Share (%) capital capital

Sharecholders

Destek Finans Faktoring A.S. 599.999 99.9999999 599.999.996 -




CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION OF THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH

DESTEK YATIRIM BANKASI ANONIM SiRKETI

NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS OF AND FOR THE

INTERIM PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2025
(Amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL") unless otherwise indicated.)

Summary information on the Bank’s activities and nature of business

The Bank carries out all kinds of banking transactions specified and permitted in Article 4 of the Banking
Law (except for deposit and mutual funds), including but not limited to the matters presented below,
and wide variety of economic, financial and commercial matters that authorised by the legislation. The
Bank was established to ensure operating in all matters that the legislation allows to be carried out or

executed by banks.

The Bank is authorized to implement all of the activities indicated below in accordance with the Banking
legislation, the Turkish Commercial Code, the Capital Markets Law and other laws and legislation.

e All bank transactions, and to provide short, medium and long-term secured or unsecured
cash and non-cash loans such as guarantees, endorsements or acceptances to institutions
and organizations operating in all economic sectors, to individuals, at home and abroad to
give or lend in any form and manner, to open letters of credit, to confirm opened letters of
credit, to carry out other transactions related to letters of credit and guarantees or
commercial vehicles, and to establish partnerships and joining partnership arrangements,

e Providing funds to sectors in Tiirkiye and abroad, especially domestic and foreign trade,
industry, agriculture, construction, mining, public works, transportation, tourism, animal
husbandry and computer sectors, with national and international banking methods, and
supporting the financing of projects, including development, investment, build-operate-transfer

projects,

e Providing assistance and act as intermediary institution of foreign and domestic capital to
invest in Tiirkiye and to participate in established or to-be-established companies, and to
provide consultancy on these matters,

e Providing short, medium and long-term loans for pledges, mortgages and other collaterals,

e Ensuring all kinds of industrial and commercial transactions, and, to participate in persons
and organizations established in accordance with private law and public law operating in
these matters, to establish partnerships, to acquire shares and other securities of public law
and private law legal entities that have been established or will be established including

buying and selling securities and bonds,

o Implementing capital or money market transactions on different securities in nature, in
cooperation with national/international organizations when necessary, and to participate in
companies established/to be established for this matter,

¢ Providing guarantees and intermediating in all kinds of leasing transactions as a party,
including domestic and international transactions,

s Ensuring wide variety of factoring transactions in the manner authorised by the legislation
at home and abroad, to provide financing related to these, to provide consultancy services

on financial matters on a sector and subject of matter basis,

e Ensuring derivative transactions, all kinds of foreign exchange transactions including
forward foreign exchange buying/selling, reverse repurchase agreements and transactions,
and to carry out transactions in the stock exchanges,

e Trading gold, silver and other precious metals in established and future precious metﬁy a’l“l.d & .
y

metal exchanges, F
ar




CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION OF THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH

DESTEK YATIRIM BANKASI ANONIM SIRKETI

NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS OF AND FOR THE

INTERIM PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2025
(Amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL") unless otherwise indicated.)

e Providing banking services to its customers in Ttrkiye and abroad through information
technology such as call center, telephone banking, electronic banking, electronic
commerce and internet, and providing direct banking services,

e [Establishing relationships with domestic and foreign banks, carrying out all kinds of
banking transactions with the Central Bank of the Republic of Tiirkiye and domestic and

foreign banks,

¢ Ensuring operations in Turkish Lira and foreign currencies in all national and international
money markets,

e Acquisition of properties in Tiirkiye and abroad, to transfer, assign, mortgage and restrict
these with other real rights, and lease them partially or completely and to dispose of them
in a way that can establish all kinds of personal or real rights and obligations,

e Obtaining and removing mortgages in one's favour in order to ensure the security or
collection of receivables, to arrange mortgage agreements, to establish and remove
commercial mortgages, to conclude lease agreements,

¢ Issuing capital market instruments, making all kinds of legal dispositions including pledge,
and establishing or removing pledges in its favor,

e Ensuring insurance agency transactions in Tiirkiye and abroad,

e Providing securities’ intermediary activities for which banks are authorized by the Capital
Markets Law, to establish, operate and manage securities’ investment funds,

e Ensuring capital market activities in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Capital
Markets Law,

o Ensuring trading of treasury bills, bonds and other securities issued or to be issued by the
Treasury, capital market instruments, securities and other capital market instruments issued
or to be issued by public and private legal entities, including the Public and Private
Partnerships, and making all kinds of legal dispositions and pledges,

e Ensuring money market operations and capital market activities authorised by the Capital
Markets Board and relevant regulations, including as the intermediary of institutions

authorized to carry out these activities,

e Providing financing to public and private sector organizations, financing to mergers and
acquisitions, company restructurings, privatization, public offering, issuing securities,
equity, share and stock evaluations and transfers, feasibility activities and sector research
and trading activities, and providing consultancy services regarding aforementioned

matters,

e Ensuring national and international banking transactions authorized by the relevant
legislation.
VL. The existing or potential, actual or legal obstacles on the immediate transfer of equity between
the Bank and its subsidiaries or reimbursement of liabilities
There are no existing or potential, actual or legal obstacles to the immediate transfer of equity pitq.l"@'.

repayment of debts between the Bank and its subsidiary Destek Menkul Degerler Anonim § ehd.
;
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CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION OF THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN
TURKISH

DESTEK YATIRIM BANKASI ANONIM SIRKETI

BALANCE SHEETS (STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION) AS AT 31 MARCH 2025 AND 31

DECEMBER 2024
(Amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL") unless otherwise indicated.)

Reviewed Audited
current period prior period
31 March 2025 31 December 2024
Nates FC Total FC Total
ASSETS G-I TL TL
L FINANCIAL ASSETS (Net) 3.140.992 1,712,952 4.853.944  2.729.381 #58.450 3.587.831
1.1 Cash and Cash Equivalents 1353.249  1.601.320 2.954.569 1.374.766 767.239 2142005
1.1l Cash and Cash Equivalents and the CBRT (1) 1.257 1.457.581 1.455.838 2.856 567.183 570.039
1,1.2 Banks (4) 95.604 143.739 230,343 7.0 200.056 971166
1.1.3 Receivables from Money Markets 1.256.38% - 1.256.388 600.800 - 600800
1.2 Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss () - - - - - -
1.2.1 Government debt securities - . * .
122 Share certificates 4 .
123 Other financial assets -
1.3 Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive
Income (5) 1.481.960 92.461  1.574.421 1.067.167 §8.756  1.155.923
1.3.1 Government debt securities 1.415.345 92461 1.507.806 1.029.399 88.756  1.118.155
132 Share certificates - . = a . 5
1.3.3 Other financial assets 60,615 666135 37.768 - 37.768
1.4 Derivative Financial Asset 3) 305,783 1917 324.954 287448 2455 189.903
1.4.1 Derivative financial assets al fair value through profit or loss
305,783 19.171 324954 IRT 448 2.455 289903

142 Derivative financial assets at fair value through other

comprehensive income . J E .
6325153  8.857.380 15.182.542 4.698.600 7.434.295 12.132.895

1L FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED COST (Net)
21 Loans (6) 6325153 B.857.380 15182542 4.698.600 7.434.295 12.132.895
22 Lease Receivables (11 = & . = . ™
23 Factoring Receivables - - 5 & - =
24 Financial Assets at Amortised Cost (M i - = . e -
2.4.1 Government debt securities 2 = = ; £
242  Other financial asscts - * -
5 Non-performing receivables - - i . o =
1.6 Provisions for Expected Losses (-) - - - - - -
. NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE AND

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Net) (16) - - 4 = -
i1 Held for Sale z r 2 Z .
32 Discontinued Operations < - - 3 = :
Iv. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES, SUBSIDIARIES AND 300.000 - 300,000 300.000 - 300,000

JOINT VENTURES
4.1 Associates (Net) (8) ~ = o N = E
411 Investments Accounted for Using the Equity Method % - - - -
412 Unconsolidated 3 . . . 3 "
42 Subsidiaries (Net) )] 300.000 - 300.000 300.000 - 300,000
42.1 Unconsolidated Financial Subsidianes 300000 - 300.000 300.000 - 300.000
4212 Unconsolidated Non-Financial Subsidiaries . 5 5 . " -
43 Joint Ventures (Net) (3 11)] = = S = 5 s
43.1 Investments Accounted for Using the Equity Method - - _ . = =
432 Unconsaolidated : . 4 = & .
V. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Net) (12) 103,396 - 103.396 93,957 - 93.957
¥I. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Net) (13 130117 - 131.117 121,139 - 121.139
61 Coodwill
62 Other 131007 - 131117 121,139 - 121,139
VIL INVESTMENT PROFPERTIES (Net) (14) N . N S )
VIII. CURRENT INCOME TAX ASSETS (15) = =
IX. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (15) - - - - . E
X. OTHER ASSETS (amn 79209 920.134 999,343 180.763 108.699 289.462

TOTAL ASSETS 10.079.867 11490475 21.570.342  8.123.840 B.401.444 16.525.284

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

8




CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION OF THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN
TURKISH

DESTEK YATIRIM BANKASI ANONIM SIRKETI

BALANCE SHEETS (STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION) AS AT 31 MARCH 2025 AND 31

DECEMBER 2024
(Amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL™) unless otherwise indicated.)

Reviewed Audited
current period prior period
31 March 2025 31 December 2024
Notes T FC Total TL FC Total

LIABILITIES (5-10) :
L DEPOSITS It - . 5 5 g .
IL BORROWINGS ) - 6.598.153  6.598.153 - 5.047.682  5.047.682
1L MONEY MARKETS 3) 1.502.973 34.747 1537720 4173 173.841 178.114
w. MARKETABLE SECURITIES ISSUED (Net) ) 834.373 3912734 4.747.107 382,983 4.188.825  4.571.808
4.1 Bills 431.893 - 431.893 253828 - 253828
4.2 Asset-backed securities L & - " - S
43 Bonds 402 480 30912734 4315214 129,155 4188825 4317980
V. FUNDS ) 452,950 31.513.269  3.966.219 523,741 2.430.072 2953813
5.1 Borrower Funds 452,950 3513.26% 3966219 523,741 2430072  2.953813
52 Other " - - = - .
VI FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS = < < = = .
VIL DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL LIABILITIES 2) 97.283 24.216 121,499 44,173 1069 45,242
71 Derivative liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 97.283 24216 121499 44.173 1.069 45.242
72 Derivative liabilities at fair value through other

comprehensive income = = 5 = = -
VIIL FACTORING LIABILITIES - 2 - % - -
IX. LEASE LIABILITIES 16) 33.905 - 33.905 211.638 - 21.638
X. PROVISIONS (8) 191078 144.365 335442 147.419 118.795 266.214
10.1 General Provisions 172.5320 144.365 316,885 136.732 118.795 255527
10.2 Provisions for Restructuring - - - - - -
10.3 Provisions for Employee Benefits 13.603 . 13.603 7.599 - 7.599
10.4 Insurance Technical Provisions (Net} - - . - - -
10.5 Other Provisions 4.954 5 4.954 3088 - 3088
XL CURRENT INCOME TAX LIABILITIES (&) 350.218 - 350.218 208.878 - 208.878
XIL DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (9 58.523 - 584.523 §7.157 - §7.157

X1 LIABILITIES FOR NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD
FOR SALE AND DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (10} - - - -

13.1 Held for Sale %

13.2 Discontinued Operations

- 382,882 I82.882 = - -

XIv. SUBORDINATED DEBT (11)
14.1 Loans - - - - - -
14.2 Other Debt Instruments - IBZAR2 382.882 - - -
XV. OTHER LIABILITIES [E]] 81.975 3R5.491 467.466 09911 196.551 406.462
XVL EQUITY (R Fi} 2.958.720 12.488 2971208 2.757.688 10.588  2.768.276
16.1 Paid-in Share Capital HOO.H00 - 600.000 600.000 = 600.000
16.2 Capital Reserves 5 - N A i i
1621 Share premium - = - - - -
16.2.2  Share Cancellation Profits = & 2 . = .
16.2.3  Other Capital Reserves - - - - - -
16.3 Other comprehensive income or expenses not to be reclassified to

profit or loss 504 - 564 (550) - (550)
16.4 Other comprehensive income or expenses o be reelassified to profit

or loss (70.898) 12,488 (584100 (17.916) 10,588 (7.328)
16.5 Profit Reserves 108,807 - 108807 51.259 = 51.259
16,51  Legal Reserves 108.807 - 18807 §].259 - 51.259
16.52  Statutory Reserves “ a - - . -
16.53  Extraordinary Reserves e . - - - B
1654  Other Profit Reserves - - 5 - - -
16.6 Profit or Loss 2.320.247 - 2320247 2.124.895 - 2.124.895
16.6.1  Prior years' profils or losses 2.067.347 - 2067347 973928 - 973.028

252.900 - 252.900  1.150.967 - L 150.967

16.62  Profit for the period

TOTAL LIABILITIES 6.561.097 15008345 21.570.342 4.357.861 12.167.423 16.525.284

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these unconsolidated financi



CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION OF THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN
TURKISH

DESTEK YATIRIM BANKASI ANONIM SiRKETI

OFF-BALANCE SHEET COMMITMENTS AS AT 31 MARCH 2025 AND 31 DECEMBER 2024

(Amounts are expressed in thousands of’ Turkish Lira (“TL") unless otherwise indicated.)
Reviewed Audited
current period prior period
31 March 2025 31 December 2024
t:‘—"l:: T FC Total T (s

Total

Off-halance sheet commirments (111101} 41153052 28364040 (9517002 JL2RR59T 21.98.224 2386821

Guarantees and warrantics (13 5.994.913 196173 . 191 0EG 4614467 267617 42084
1 Letters of puaraniec 5094913 196173 6191086 44614467 267.617 4852084
11 Cruarantees subject (0 state tender law 519 529 1 695 1%4.561 146656
1.2 Gruarantees givest for forergn wade aperaticns - - 3 -
L3 Crhee bettens of guaranice 5004384 196173 6,190,557 4.612.772 81656 46554240
2 Bank accepitances - - . - - -

21 Linport letter 0f acceplande:

22 Ol bank accepiances

3 Letters of credit

A1 Documientary letiers of credit

L Oiber betters of erodid

4 Frelinancing given as guaranioe - g . s
5 Endorseinents - . +

A | Endorsemnents o the Cenral Bonk of the Republic of Turkive . . . - =

52 Chher endorsement - B . -

& Secunlics 1350 parchise guaranice - . - . -

7 Factoning guarantiss - - . -

¥ Other guarantess - - - -

9 Other ball of guaranrces - - . - 3

Commitments (1hi3) 13.737.420 3436570 17.174.090 9.914.309 4,169,059 14,183,358
Trrevocable comilmens 3459 15K 1436670 6,595,528 4172004 4,169,059 B341.08

Asset purchase and sale commmitneis 3.459.154 1 436AT0 6,505 K28 4172005 4169058 B340 0658
Dieposit purchasc and sales comminiments : . .

I
3
| Sharc capital commitmints & associales and subsdiines
A Lol granting conmimens - = -

5 Secunties wssue brokerage commilments . = ¥ =
] Commuitmends for reserve deposit requinanents - . s
e ) Comuitments for chegues - . 3 X &
.3 Tax al fumd liababitres from expoTT COBILTEIRDIS . E . = -
-3 Comniitments for credit card fimits - . =

I Commmitments for credit cards and banking services promoions - . .

I ). i . . =

1

1

wvihles from shor sal of marketable secorities
Payables for short sale commitments of marketable securties = , . =
Other imevocahle commitments - . = s .
Revocalle commetmenis 10278 262 16h278.263 5742270 - 5.742.200
I Revocilde loan pranting commitmenis 10,278, 262 10278262 5742270 - 5.742.770
.2 Other revocable committents . ] - =
Derivative financial instruments ) 21420719 24731197 46151916 16.755.521 16661548 33.421.369
Deerivative financisl nstruments for bedaing purposes . 1 B 5 £
Transactions for fair value hedge - - - -
Transactions for cash flow hedge - : 4 . ¥
Transactions for forergm net investnent hedie = = 3
g Trading transactions 21420712 2475019 46.151.916 16755821 T6.660 33.421 369
321 Forward foreign camency huyfsell ransactions |8351.433 17.593. 204 15.946,637 15940 444 13177260 31126 7
32a4 Farward foregh Cummency trensaciionus: buy 9157675 9.043, 72§ 18.206,400 BA1L124 6044584 15835, 708
1212 Forward foreigh cumency transaclions-scll 9195 754 H. 544470 17740237 T8I0 132676 15 270.996
322 Swap transactions related 10 foreign curreney il interest mies 3467286 T137.99 10,205,279 w0377 1,484 288 2,294 665
3221 Foreign currency swap-buy 1757 987 T 343,005 5,100,942 1143 546 1,143 846
12332 Forcign currency awop-sell 1.309.299 1,794 988 5104247 810377 40442 1.150.819
3223 Interest rate swap-buy " *
1224 Interest rate swap-sedl z & - - z =
= Foreign currency, (nierest mie and securities upioas - . - = .
Foreign cameney options-y - - - -
Forgign cumency options-sell . “ = - -
Interest rate optints-buy . % - = -
Ilerest rate options-sell = = =
Secusiies aptions-bay - . . =
Secusines aphions-sell - = - -
A Foreign comrency fulures . - - -
4.1 Foreign corrency furures- by = . =
42 Foreign comency fulures- sell B = =
3 iterest rale fulures - - 2 =
5
5
L

e Py -
brefe g

=

Ly b =

P
B

1 Interst rate fiumres-huy
2 Interest rate fimeres-sedl

(nher i . . - = =
B Custody and pledges received (TVV+VI) 64 414966 1106881 7911846 S6.R50.722 10.01%.965 66 ATILGRT
Iy, Items held in costody 1H134M 4.223.374 TH36TTR 1790218 3.957.796 S.TTRAM
4.1 Customer fusd and ponfolio bilances - - - - - -
4.2 Investment seeurities held i custody T 43 4.147.562 A ETTI0R 41082 1416574 4.638.050
4.3 Chegues roceived for collection ST - S36.700 44126 - 44,126
44 Commercial notes recerved for collection . - - c
4.5 Other nssees received for collecuom

46 Assets received for public offenng

4.7 Chher toms wisder custody - - - = -
a8 Custodians 1.340. 561 75312 1.622.372 Lok TOLE22 LTS 832
Pledpes reccived LLEUIT RS 3 6.R7XS0G TLETS 68 55, (e, S04 6.032.164 BLINLATY
Markdahle securitics

Guarantes noles

Cammadity

Warrants - - - -

Properties = = - H

Cnther pledged ioms &N 562 6873506 TLATHUGE 55000 54 6032165 61092673
Pledged items-depsitiry - - -

Accepted independent guaraniees and warranties - - - -

Total off-balance sheet commitments (A+E 109.965.018
____._.5—-——\—-[ e

e
[l -SRI P R

39.460.920 149428938 BH.139.31% ETNEL A ] 119.257.508

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.
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CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION OF UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN

TURKISH

DESTEK YATIRIM BANKASI ANONiM SIRKETI

STATEMENTS OF PROFIT OR LOSS FOR THE INTERIM PERIODS ENDED 31 MARCH 2025 AND

2024
{Amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise indicated.)
Reviewed current period  Reviewed prior period
Notes 1 January- 1 January-
Income and expense items (5-1V) 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
L INTEREST INCOME n 982.216 306.968
1.1 Interest on Loans R15.318 163.241
1.2 Interest Received from Reserve Depasits - -
1.3 [nterest Received from Banks 3lLE19 50.279
1.4 Interest Received from Money Market Transactions 76.162 1.923
1.5 Interest Received from Marketable Securities Portfolio §1.344 91.525
151 Financial Asscts al Fair Value Through Prefit or Los - -
1.5.2 Financial Assets at Fair Value Thiough Other Comprchensive Incame 51344 91525
153 Financial Assets at Amortised Cost - =
1.6 Finance Lease Income - -
1A Other Interest Income 3573 -
I INTEREST EXPENSES (-) (1] 345319 113.548
2.1 Interest on Deposits - =
22 Iaterest on Funds Borrowed 104,636 2214
13 Intetest expense on money market transactions 20,460 14.646
24 Interest on Securitics lssucd 144 084 al1.001
25 Interest on Leases 5486 -
2.6 Oither Interest Expenses TH663 35.687
118 NET INTEREST INCOME/EXPENSE (1 - ) 436,887 193,420
v, NET FEES AND COMMISSIONS TINCOMEEXPENSE 14.026 LArA
4. Fees and Commissions Received 22939 9.357
4.1.1 Non-cash Loans 18 148 7057
4.1.2 Other (12} 4,791 2.300
4.2 Fees and Commissions Paid &913 5.625
4.2.1 Nen-cash Loans 2,651 1,628
422 Other {12} 6.262 3997
Y, DIVIDEND INCOME (E] x -
Vi OPERATING PROFIT/LOSS (Net} (4 (83.605) 432181
6.1 Gains/Losses on Securities 33.601 -
g Derivative Financial Transactions Gains/Losses §2.993 140.868
6.3 Foreign Exchange Gains/Losscs {220.201) 291313
VIL OTHER OPERATING INCOME {5 38668 1.668
VI GROSS PROFIT FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (IMHIVHVHVIHVID 605,976 631001
IX. PROVISIONS FOR EXPECTED CREDIT LOSSES (-) {6) 61.358 67.452
X. PERSONNEL EXPENSES (-) 74,920 J1.509
XL OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES (-} ) 52546 34.361
XL NET OPERATING PROFIT/LOSS (VII-IX-X-XI-X1I) 417.152 497679
XIIL SURPLUS WRITTEN AS GAIN AFTER BUSINESS COMBINATION - -
X1V, PROFIT/LOSS FROM EQUITY METHOD OF SUBSIDIARIES -
XV, NET MONETARY POSITION GAIN/LOSS - -
XVL PROFIT/LOSS BEFORE TAXES FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS (XITT+., +XYV1) {8) 417.182 497679
XVIL PROVISION FOR TAXES ON INCOME FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS (£} ()] 164,252 157.208
17.1 Current Tax Provision 163.363 147.858
17.2 Expense cffect of deferred tax (+) 289 9.350
17.3 Income effect of defered tax (-) 2 =
XVIIL NET PROFIT/LOSS FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS {XVIEEXVIIT) {10 2152900 340471
XIX. INCOME FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS - -
19.1 Ingome from assets held for sale -
19.2 Giain on sale of associates, subsidianes and joint ventures - -
19.3 Other income from discontinued operations - -
AX. EXPENSES FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (-) 2 -
20.1 Enpenscs on asscts held for sale - -
0.2 Losses on sale of associates, subsidianies and joint ventures Bt
203 Other expenses from discontinued operations -
XXL PROFIT/LOSS BEFORE TAXES FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (XX - XD (8) - -
XXIL TAX PROVISION FOR DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS () (k)] -
221 Current tax provision - -
232 Expense effect of defered tax (+) - =
a3 eome effect of deferred tax () -
XXML NET PROFIT/ LOSS FROM DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (AXIEXXT) (10 = -
XXV, NET PROFIT/LOSS (XVIIT+XXIID () 252.900 340,471
Eamings per share 042150 057277

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.
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CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION OF UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN

TURKISH

DESTEK YATIRIM BANKASI ANONIM SIRKETI

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE INTERIM PERIODS ENDED 31 MARCH 2025 AND

2024

(Amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL") unless otherwise indicated.)

Reviewed current

period

Reviewed prior
period

1 January-

31 March 2025

1 January-
31 March 2024

A, CASH FLOWS FROM BANKING OPERATIONS

1.1 Operating profit before changes in operating assets and liabilities 187.465 374.876
L.1.1 Interest received 639,191 313.482
1.1.2 Interest paid (303.621) (113.548)
1.1.3 Dividend received - -
1.1.4 Fees and commissions received - -
1.1.5 Other income - -
1.1.6 Collections from previously writlen-off loans and other receivahle - -
1.1.7 Cash payments to personnel and service suppliers (B0.658) (32.549)
1.1.8 Taxes paid (164.252) (157.208)
1.1.9 Other (203.195) 364,659
1.2 Changes in operating assets and liahilities subject to banking operations 212.197 (519.044)
1.2.1 Net (increase) decrease in financial assets at fair value through profitor loss i

122 Net (increase) decrease in due from banks - -
1.2.3 Net (increase) decrease in loans (2.544.883) (1.984.457)
1.2.4 Net (increase) decrease in other assels (1.128.19%) (522.131)
1.2.3 Net increase (decrease) in bank deposits - -
1.2.6 Net increase (decrease) in other depasits - :
1.2.7 Net increase (decrease) in financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss - -
12.8 Net increase (decrease) in borrowings 1.486.537 (96.627)
129 Net increase {decrease) in matured payables - 5
1.2.10 Net increase (decrease) in other liabilitics 2.798.741 2.084.171
L Net cash from banking operations 399.662 (144.168)
B. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

1L Net cash from investing activifies (499.387) (598.579)
21 Cash paid for the purchase of associates, subsidiaries and joint ventures - (300.000)
22 Cash obtained from the sale of associates. subsidiaries and joint ventures - -
23 Cash paid for the purchase of property. plant and equipment and intangible asset (29.373) (20.633)
24 Cash obtained from the sale of property. plant and equipment and intangible assct - .
2.5 Cash paid for the purchase of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (460.036) (268.673)
2.6 Cash obtained from the sale of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income - -
2.7 Cash paid for the purchase of financial assets at smortised cos| - -
2.8 Cash obtained from sale of financial assets at amortised cost < -
29 Other (9.978) (2.273)
C. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

IH. Net cash flows from financing activities 529.023 1.164.807
A | Cash inflows from borrowings and securities issued 529.023 1.164.807
332 Cash outflows from borrowings and securities issued -
33 Equity instruments issued i .
14 Dividends paid s i
33 Payments for lease liabilities - -
36 Other (+/-) -
Iv. Effect of change in foreign exchange rate on cash and cash equivalents {+-) - -
V. Net increase/decrease in cash and cash equivalents (1+11+1TH1V) 429.298 422.060
V1. Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period (+) 1.670.394 453.079
Vil Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period (V+VI) 2.099.692 875.139

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statemenis
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CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION OF THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH

DESTEK YATIRIM BANKASI ANONIM S$iRKETI

NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS OF AND FOR THE INTERIM

PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2025
(Amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL") unless otherwise indicated.)

SECTION THREE
Explanations on Accounting Policies

I Basis of presentation

1. Preparation of the financial statements and the accompanying notes in accordance with Turkish
Accounting Standards and the Communique on Principles and Procedures on the Accounting Practice

and Documentation of Banks

The unconsolidated financial statements are prepared within the scope of the “Regulation on Accounting
Applications for Banks and Safeguarding of Documents™ (“Regulation™) related with Banking Law numbered
5411 published in the Official Gazette No. 26333 dated 1 November 2006 and other regulations related to
reporting principles on accounting records of Banks published by Banking Regulation and Supervision Agency
(the “BRSA™) and circulars and interpretations published by BRSA (together referred as BRSA Accounting and
Reporting Legislation) and in case where a specific regulation is not made by BRSA, Turkish Financial
Reporting Standards (“TFRS™) and (referred as “Turkish Accounting and Financial Reporting Regulations™ or

“Reporting Standards™) put into effect by Public Oversight Accounting and Auditing Standards Authority (the
“POA™).

The amounts in the unconsolidated financial statements and relevant notes expressed in thousands of Turkish
Lira (“TL") unless otherwise indicated.

The accompanying unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the
“Communique amending the Communique on the Financial Statements and Related Disclosures and Footnotes
to be Announced to Public by Banks” published in the Official Gazette dated 1 February 2019 numbered 30673.

The accompanying unconsolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with the historical cost basis
except for the financial assets and liabilities at fair value.

Within the framework of the Regulation on the Procedures and Principles Regarding the Classification of Loans
and the Provisions to be Set aside with the decision of the Banking Regulation and Supervision Board dated 21
December 2017 and numbered 7650, the provisions of the Bank will be replaced by the 10th, 11th, 13th and
15th of the regulation instead of TFRS 9 considering the authorisation obtained from BRSA on 21 February
2022. In this context, the Bank did not apply the provisions of TFRS 9 effective as of 1 January 2018 regarding
the measurement of provisions. In accordance with the authorisation received from the BRSA, the Bank
calculates its provisions not with the expected credit losses under TFRS 9, but within the scope of the 10th,

11th, 13th and 15th articles of the regulation until indicated otherwise.

As of 31 March 2025, the unconsolidated balance sheet and off-balance sheet commitments are presented
comparatively with the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2024. The unconsolidated
statement of profit or loss, profit or loss and other comprehensive income, unconsolidated statement of changes
in equity and unconsolidated statement of cash flows for the interim period ended on 31 March 2025 are
presented comparatively with the unconsolidated financial statements for the interim period ended on 31 March

2024.
2. Accounting policies and valuation principles used in the preparation of the financial statements

ples adopted when preparing financial statements are in accordance
RSA concerning accounting and
with the provisions of TAS/TFRS

The accounting policies and valuation princi
with the legislation, communiqué, explanation and circular released by B
financial reporting, and, for matters which are not regulated by the foregoing,
(together “BRSA Accounting and Financial Reporting Legislation).

e =
The amendments and any changes in transition to TAS/TFRS, do not have a material inﬂug;zéggniﬂq
accounting policies, financial position and performance, effective from 1 January 2023. The'Bank ma )
ostimated that the amendments to TAS and TFRS, which have been published but not ery ered into-RaNS
the date of the financial statements, will not have a material influence on the Bank'di acgmlilq%}. . 8
financial position and performance. o s,

*

-~

15



1L

CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION OF THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH

DESTEK YATIRIM BANKASI ANONIM SiRKETI

NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS OF AND FOR THE INTERIM

PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2025
(Amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL") unless otherwise indicated.)

Explanations on Accounting Policies (continued)

L Basis of presentation (continued)

2. Accounting policies and valuation principles used in the preparation of the financial statements
(continued)

In accordance with the announcement disclosed by the Public Oversight, Accounting, and Auditing Standards
Authority (the “POA™) on 23 November 2023, it was decided that entities applying TFRS must implement the

“TAS 29 Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies™ in their financial statements starting from the

31 December 2023 annual reporting period. In addition, entities authorized to regulate and supervise within
fferent transition dates for the application

their respective nature of business were granted the flexibility to set di
of TAS 29 provisions. Within this scope, under the decision of the Banking Regulation and Supervision Agency

(the “BRSA”) on 12 December 2023, and numbered 10744, banks, as well as financial leasing, factoring,
financing, savings financing, and asset management companies, are exempted from applying the inflation
adjustments required by TAS 29 in their financial statements on 31 December 2023. Furthermore, in accordance
with the decision dated 11 January 2024, and numbered 10825, these entities are requ ired to implement inflation
accounting commencing from 1 January 2025. Accordingly, the Bank has not applied the inflation accounting
required under TAS 29 in the accompanying unconsolidated financial statements as of and for the interim period
ended 31 March 2025. The accounting policies and valuation principles are disclosed in Notes Il and XXIIL

I1. Explanations on strategy of using financial instruments and foreign currency transactions

1. The Bank’s strategy on financial instruments

The Bank's core business covers all banking services and investment banking activities, excluding debt
financing, foreign trade finance, structured finance, treasury products and services, and accepting deposits,
offered to Corporate and Commercial Banking customers.

The Bank started its operations on 25 February 2022 and approximately 14% of the Bank's resources consist of
equity as of the balance sheet date. The Bank's main objective is to diversify its funding sources over time. In
line with this objective, both expanding the investor base and diversifying the borrowing markets have been
prioritised. The domestic bond/bill market is targeted to be the primary funding source of the Bank in the first
months. In addition, Borsa Istanbul Debt Securities Market, Central Bank of the Republic of Tiirkiye (CBRT)
Open Market Operations Market, Takasbank Money Market and Interbank repo/deposit market will be used as
funding sources. The efforts are being realised to utilise funding opportunities especially from foreign banks
with relatively long-term maturities. Swap transactions will be used to manage the liquidity of different

currencies.

As of the balance sheet date, the share of loans granted in the Bank’s assets is 70%, and there is a liquid balance
sheet structure in which the Bank’s resources are used in short and medium-term financial instruments.

2. The Bank’s explanations on foreign currency transactions

The Bank adopted an asset-liability balance management strategy aimed at adverse the effects of risks and
increasing profits by balancing the resources and assets it uses in terms of risk. The main goal of asset-liability
management is to keep the Bank's liquidity risk, exchange rate risk and credit risk within certain limits; to

increase profitability and strengthen the Bank's equity and capital.

d liabilities are translated with the exchange rates announced

Foreign currency denominated monelary assets an
valuations are recognised

by the CBRT prevailing at the balance sheet date. Gains and losses arising from such
in the statement of profit or loss under the account of “Foreign exchange gains or losses”, excepi-tors luation
differences arising from foreign currency participations, subsidiaries and foreign currf{;,[}éy qﬁ‘r:ﬁ)

i -

loans. 7/
Explanations on forward and option contracts and derivative instruments g B ‘ k E :

F
Derivative transactions are classified as trading and are carried at their fair value in the u\&:o@s
+

statements. X S
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Liabilities and receivables arising from derivatives are recognised in the off-
the contractual amounts.

balance sheet accounts based on

Explanations on Accounting Policies (continued)
Explanations on forward and option contracts and derivative instruments (continued)

Derivative transactions are carried at fair value in the periods following their recognition. In accordance with
their classification, derivative transactions are presented in “Derivative Financial Assets at Fair Value Through
Profit or Loss” or “Derivative Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income” if their
fair value is positive. On the other hand, derivative transactions are presented in “Derivative Financial Liabilities
at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss™ or “Derivative Financial Liabilities at Fair Value Through Other
Comprehensive Income” if their fair value is negative. Differences in the fair value of derivative transactions at
fair value of derivative financial assets are recognised in profit or loss are recognised under profit or loss from
derivative financial transactions in the operating profit/loss in the statement of profit or loss.

The Bank has no embedded derivative products determined by seperation from the main contract or derivative

products for hedging purposes.

As of 31 March 2025, the Bank has derivative financial assets amounting to TL 324.954 and derivative financial
liabilities amounting to TL 121.499 classified as “Derivative financial assets at fair value through profit or loss™.

Explanations on interest income and expense

Interest income and expenses are recognized in the statement of profit or loss on an accrual basis by using the
effective interest method periodically. The Bank amortizes the fees and transaction costs included in the
calculation of the effective profit rate over the estimated useful life of the financial instrument when applying

the internal return.
Explanations on fee and commission income and expense
Revenue arising from banking operations are recognised as income in the period they are collected.

Loan fees and commission expenses paid to other institutions and organizations regarding financial liabilities
and inchiding transaction costs are considered as a part of the interest expense of the relevant loan.

Fees and commission income/expenses collected/paid regarding any forward transaction are recognised on an
accrual basis.
Revenue provided through contracts or through consultancy and project services related to transactions such as

asset acquisitions, partnership purchases or sale for a third real or legal person, are recognised as income during
the completion of the transactions, the provision of the service or when they are collected, depending on their

nature.

Explanations on financial assets

The Bank categorizes its financial assets as “Fair Value Through Profit or Loss”, “Fair Value Through Other
Comprehensive Income” or “Measured at Amortized Cost”. Such financial assets are recognized or
derecognized according to TFRS 9 Financial Instruments Part 3 Issued for classification and measurement of
the financial instruments published in the Official Gazette No. 29953 dated 19 January 2017 by the Public
Oversight Accounting and Auditing Standards Authority (“POA”). Financial assets are measured at fair value
at initial recognition in the financial statements. During the initial recognition of financial assets other than
"Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss", transaction costs are added to fair value or deducted

from fair value.

According to TFRS 9 requirements, classification and measurement of financial assets {Wﬁ"'&lﬁe the
business model within which financial assets are managed and their contractual casyi’ﬂo“f' ictgridics
whether the cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest. g 3 e
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Explanations on Accounting Policies (continued)
VL Explanations on financial assets (continued)

1. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

“Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss™ are financial assets other than the ones that are managed

with business model that aims to hold to collect contractual cash flows or business model that aims to collect
both the contractual cash flows and cash flows arising from the sale of the assets; and if the contractual terms
of the financial asset do not lead to cash flows representing solely payments of principal and interest at certain
date; that are either acquired for generating a profit from short-term fluctuations in prices or are financial assets
included in a portfolio aiming to short-term profit making. Financial assets at the fair value through profit or
loss are initially recognized at fair value and remeasured at their fair value after recognition. All gains and losses
arising from these valuations are reflected in the income statement. As of 31 March 2025 and 31 December

2024, the Bank has no financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.
2. Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Financial assets are classified as financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income where the
business models aim to hold financial assets in order to collect the contractual cash flows and selling assets and
the terms of financial asset give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal of interest at certain
dates.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are subsequently measured at their fair value.
The interest income of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income that are calculated by
effective interest rate method and dividend income from equity instruments are reflected in the statement of
profit or loss. “Unrealized profits and losses”, the difference between the fair value of debt instruments at fair
value through other comprehensive income and their amortized cost, are not reflected in the statement of profit
or loss for the period until the corresponding financial asset is collected, sold, disposed of or weakened and is
followed in the “Other Comprehensive Income or Expenses to be Reclassified to Profit or Loss™ account under
equity. Accumulated fair value differences under equity are reflected to the statement of profit or loss when
such securities are collected or disposed.

Securities representing shares in capital classified as financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income are carried at their fair value.

The “Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income” portfolio includes fixed-rate
treasury bills, government bonds and Eurobonds issued by the Turkish Treasury, as well as CPI indexed
government bonds. These CPI indexed securities are carried and accounted based on real coupon rates and the
reference inflation index on the date of issuance and the reference inflation index on the valuation date. The
reference indices used in calculating the actual coupon payment amounts of these assets are created according
to the CPI of two months ago.

As of 31 March 2025, government debt securities classified under “Financial Assets at Fair Value through Other
Comprehensive Income™ is amounting to TL 1.507.806 (31 December 2024: TL 1.118.155) and the Bank has
other financial assets amounting to TL 66.615 in the accompanying unconsolidated financial statements (31

December 2024: TL 37.768).
3. Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are classified as financial assets measured at amortized cost. Financial assels
measured at amortized cost are initially recognized at acquisition cost including the lransactig_g_ﬁ costs, which
reflect the fair value of those instruments and subsequently recognized at amortized cqgtr:ﬁ?"igéir‘l?;ﬁective

interest rate method. Interest income obtained from financial assets measured at amortizéd gosﬁ’ 1 q?gggn din
statement of profit or loss. j » oul
{ -~ L N
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Explanations on Accounting Policies (continued)
VL Explanations on financial assets (continued)

3. Financial assets at amortised cost (continued)

Financial assets at amortized cost are initially recognised by adding transaction costs to their acquisition costs,
which reflect their fair values, and following their recognised, they are measured at their “Amortized cost” using
the “Effective interest (internal rate of return) method™. Interest income related to financial assets measured at
amortized cost is reflected in the statement of profit or loss. The Bank's financial assets measured at amortized
cost consist of loans. As of 31 March 2025, the Bank has loans amounting to TL 15.182.542 (31 December

2024: TL.12.132.593).

Loans

Loans are financial assets that have fixed or determinable payments terms and are not quoted in an active market.
Loans are initially recognized at acquisition cost plus transaction costs presenting their fair value and thereafter
measured at amortized cost using the “Effective Interest Rate (internal rate of return) Method™. Transaction
fees, dues and other expenses paid for loan guarantees are recognized under the profit and loss accounts.

The Bank management reviews the loan portfolio at regular intervals and in case of doubts that the loans granted
will not be collected. The Bank applies the Procedures and Principles Regarding the Classification of Loans and
Provisions to be Set Aside”, which was published in the Official Gazette No. 29750 on 22 September 2016 and
amended by the regulation published in the Official Gazette No. 30569 dated 18 October 2018, for loans that
are considered in this matter. Accordingly, the Bank realises classifications within the framework of the
principles set out in the “Regulation on Provisions™ (“Regulation on Provisions”).

Within the framework of the Regulation on the Procedures and Principles Regarding the Classification of Loans

o be Set aside with the decision of the Banking Regulation and Supervision Board dated 21

and the Provisions t
replaced by the 10th, 11th, 13th and

December 2017 and numbered 7650, the provisions of the Bank will be
15th of the regulation instead of TFRS 9 considering the authorisation obtained from BRSA on 21 February

2022. In this context, the Bank did not apply the provisions of TFRS 9 effective as of 1 January 2018 regarding
the measurement of provisions. In accordance with the authorisation received from the BRSA, the Bank
calculates its provisions not with the expected credit losses under TFRS 9, but within the scope of the 10th,

11th, 13th and 15th articles of the regulation until indicated otherwise.

Explanations on offsetting financial assets

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is recognised in the balance sheet when the Bank
has a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to collect/pay the
related financial assets and liabilities on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Explanations on sales and repurchase agreements and securities lending transactions

Securities subject to repurchase agreements (“Repo”) are classified as “Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income™ and “at amortised cost” in the balance sheet according to the investment purposes
and measured according to the portfolio of the Bank to which they belong. Funds obtained under repurchase
agreements are accounted under “Funds provided under repurchase agreements” in liability accounts and
differences between the sale and repurchase prices determined by these repurchase agreements are accrued
evenly over the life of the repurchase agreement using the “Effective interest (internal return) method”. Funds
given against securities purchased under agreements to resell (“Reverse repos”) are accounted under
“Receivables from money market” in the balance sheet. The difference between the purchase and resell price
determined by these repurchase agreements is accrued evenly over the life of repurchase agreements using the

“Effective interest rate method”.
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Explanations on Accounting Policies (continued)
Explanations on non-current assets held for sale and related to discontinued operations and explanations
on liabilities related with these assets

According to “TFRS 5 Non-Current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations™ which satisfy to be
classified as held for sale are measured by the lower of carrying value less cost to sell and these assets are not
amortised; and are separately presented in the financial statements. For an asset (or else the group of assets) to
be classified as held for sale; the asset should be ready for immediate sale in frequently seen and accustomed
terms and the probability of sale should be high. For the probability of sale to be high, appropriate level of
management should have made a plan for the sale of the asset (or else the group of assets) and a program should
have been initiated in order to determine buyers as well as complete the plan. Also, the asset or else the group
of assets) shall be actively marketed in conformity with its fair value. On the other hand, the sale is expected to
be journalized as a completed sale within one year after the classification date; and the necessary transactions
and procedures to complete the plan should demonstrate the fact that the possibility of making significant
changes or cancelling the plan is low. Certain events and conditions may extend the duration of completion of

sale to more than one year.

If such delay arises from any events and conditions beyond the control of the entity and if there is sufficient
evidence that has an ongoing disposal plan for these assets, such assets (or else the group of assets) are continued
to be classified as assets held for sale (or else the group of assets). A discontinued operation is part of bank as
held for sale or disposed. The results of discontinued operations are presented Explanations on interest income
and expense in the statement of profit or loss. As of 31 March 2025 and 31 December 2024, the Bank has no

discontinued operations at the end of the interim reporting period.
As of 31 March 2025 and 31 December 2024, the Bank has no non-current assets held for sale.

A discontinued operation is a division of a bank that is classified as being disposed of or held for sale. The
results of discontinued operations are presented separately in the statement of profit or loss.

Explanations on goodwill and other intangible assets

As of 31 March 2025 and 31 December 2024, the Bank has no goodwill. Other intangible assets consist of
computer software and licenses. Intangible assets are amortized according to the straight-line basis, considering
their economic useful lives in the unconsolidated financial statements. Depreciation is provided for intangible

assets over 3-15 years.
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Explanations on Accounting Policies (continued)

Explanations on property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated using the straight-line basis. The useful lives of property, plant
and equipment are determined by the Bank management and are depreciated using rates determined according
to their useful lives. Property, plant and equipment are depreciated over 3-1 0 years using the straight-line basis.

Depreciation is allocated using the straight-line basis over the shorter of the operting lease periods for leasehold
improvements or the useful life leasehold improvements.

For assets that have been recognised for less than one accounting period as of the balance sheet date,
depreciation has been allocated in the amount calculated by proportioning the depreciation amount estimated a
year to the period the asset recognised under assets. Gains or losses on disposals of property, plant and
equipment are determined by comparing proceeds with their net carrying amounts. Repairs and maintenance
expenses are charged to the income statements during the period in which they are incurred. The cost of major
renovations is included in the carrying amount of the asset when it is probable that future economic benefits in
excess of the originally assessed standard of performance of the existing asset will flow to the Bank. Major
renovations are depreciated over the remaining useful life of the related asset. The Bank has no purchase
commitment regarding its property, plant and equipment. The Bank has no pledges and mortgages on its

roperty, plant and equipment.

Property, plant and Econcomic useful
equipment lives

Cahs on hand 50 years

Office machinery and suppliers 4-15 years
Leasehold improvements 5 years

Oth.f.-r property, plant and 3.10 years
equipment

Motor vehicles 2-5 years

Explanations on leases

The Bank assesses whether the contract has the quality of a lease or w
transaction at the beginning of a contract in the application of TFRS 16. In case th
for a certain period of time to control the use of the asset defined for a price, it is either leased or includes
a lease. The Bank reflects the existence of a right of use and a lease liability to the financial statements at

the effective date of the lease.

hether the lease includes the
e contract is transferred

After the commencement date, the Bank measures the right-of-use asset applying a cost model. To apply
the cost model, the Bank measures the right-of-use asset at cost less any accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses; and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The Bank applies
TAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” to determine whether the real estates considered as right of-use assets are

impaired and to account for any impairment loss identified.

With the “TFRS 16 Leases™ standard effective from 1 January 2019, the difference between operating
leases and finance leases has been eliminated and the lease transactions have been disclosed under
the “Lease liabilities” as liability by lessees. The lease transactions were started to be recognised
under “Property, plant and equipment” as an asset and under “Lease liabilities™ as a liability.

TERS 16 Leases standard eliminates the dual accounting model currently applied for lesset.:»sr_tv@_ggugh
recognizing finance leases in the balance sheet whereas not recognizing operational lease. eidgt S
forth a single model similar to the accounting of finance leases (on balance sheet)

accounting remains the same.

21



XIL

XIIIL

XIV.

CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION OF THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH

DESTEK YATIRIM BANKASI ANONIM SiRKETI

NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS OF AND FOR THE INTERIM

PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2025
(Amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL") unless otherwise indicated.)

Right of use assets

The Bank recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying
asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accu mulated depreciation and

impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.
Explanations on Accounting Policies (continued)

Explanations on leases (continued)

The right use includes the presence of:
a) The initial measurement amount of the lease obligation,

b) the amount obtained by deducting all the rental incentives received from all lease
payments made at or before the beginning of the lease;

¢) all initial direct costs incurred by the Bank

When applying the cost method, the existence of the right to use:

a) accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses are deducted and

b) Measures the restatement of the lease obligation at the restated cost. The Bank applies the
provisions of depreciation regulated under the TAS 16 “Property, plant and equipment”, while
depreciating the rights of use assets.

Lease liability

The Bank measures the lease obligation at the present value of the unpaid lease payments on the date that
the lease commences. Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease obligation on the date that
the lease actually commences, consists of the following payments to be made for the right of use of the
underlying asset during the lease period and not paid on the date the lease actually starts.

After the effective date of the lease, the Bank measures the lease liability as follows:

- Increase the book value to reflect the interest on the lease liability
. Reduces the book value to reflect the lease payments made and

The book value is measured to reflect reassessments and restructuring, or reflect
to fixed lease payments as of revised nature.

The interest on the lease liability for each period in the lease period is the amount calculated by applying a
fixed periodic interest rate to the remaining balance of the lease liability.

Explanations on provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Provisions and contingent liabilities are accounted in accordance with the Turkish Accounting Standard
“Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets” (“TAS 37"). Provisions are recognized when the Bank has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of
the obligation can be made. A provision for contingent liabilities arising from past events should be recognized
in the same period of occurrence in accordance with the periodicity principle. A liability is recognized as a
contingent liability where a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be
confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of more than one events not wholly within of
the Bank; or a present obligation that arises from past events but it is not probable that an out 05,1?3_0

embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation; or the amount of thefob]fation
be measured with sufficient reliability and disclosed in the notes to the financial statementsf 2

Explanations on obligations related to employee benefits
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Under the Turkish Labor Law, the Bank operating in Tiirkiye are required to pay a specific amount to the
employees who have retired or whose employment is terminated other than the reasons specified in the Turkish
Labor Law. According to the related regulation, the Bank is obliged to pay termination benefits for employees
who retire, quit for their military service obligations, who have been dismissed as defined in the related
regulation or who have completed at least one year of service. The reserve for employment termination benefits
represents the present value of the estimated total reserve for the future probable obligation of the Bank arising
from this liability. In accordance with TAS 19, actuarial gains and losses are recognized in equity. The Bank
and its employees are not a member of foundations, funds or similar organizations.

Explanations on Accounting Policies (continued)
Explanations on taxation

Corporate tax
As of 31 March 2025, the current effective corporate tax rate is 30%.

Pursuant to Article 25 of Law No. 7394 published in the Official Gazette dated 15 April 2022 and numbered
31810; Corporate tax rate has been determined as 25% for banks, companies within the scope of Law No. 6361,
electronic payment and money institutions, authorized foreign exchange institutions, asset management
companies, capital market institutions, insurance and reinsurance companies and pension companies is
determined as 25%, and this rate will be effective as of 1 July 2022. It came into force to start with the
declarations that must be submitted and to be applied to corporate earnings for accounting periods starting from
1 January 2022.

In accordance with Article 21 of the Law No. 7456 published in the Official Gazette dated 15 July 2023 and
numbered 32249, starting from the declarations that must be submitted as of 1/10/2023; The corporate lax rate
to be applied to the earnings of entities in 2023 and the following taxation periods has been increased from 25%
(o 30% for banks and other institutions mentioned in the law. As of 31 March 2025, the corporate tax rate has
been applied as 30% in the unconsolidated financial statements.

The corporate tax rate is applied to the tax base to be calculated as a result of the addition of the nondeductible
expenses in accordance with the tax laws to the commercial income of the corporations and deducting the
exceptions (such as the participation earnings exemption) and deductions in the tax laws. No further tax is paid

if the profit is not distributed.

Dividends paid to non-resident corporations, which have a place of business or permanent attorney in Tirkiye
or to resident corporations are not subject to withholding tax. While dividends paid to individuals and
corporations were subject to withholding tax at the rate of 15%, this rate has been changed to 10% with the
Presidential Decision published in the Official Gazette dated 22 December 2021 and No. 31697. Addition of
profit to capital is not considered as profit distribution and withholding tax is not applied.

Corporations calculate advance tax quarterly on their financial profits at the corporate tax rate valid for that year
and declare and pay until the 17th day of the second month following that period. Advance tax paid by
corporations for the current period is offset against the annual corporate tax calculated on the annual corporate
income in the following year. Despite the offset, if there is temporary prepaid tax remaining, this balance can
be used to offset any other financial liabilities to the government.

Under the Turkish Corporate Tax Law, losses can be carried forward to offset against future taxable income for
up to five years. Losses cannot be carried back to offset profits from previous periods.

Corporations which have been fallen to legal proceedings because of owe to the bank or Savings Deposit
Insurance Funds, and their warranters’ real estates, participation stocks, founding bonds, redeemg_dﬁ shares,
options to call of mortgagors” revenues that used for against debts or transferring to SDIF, 5086 0frihe Hrafits
arising from the sale of the said assets obtained by the banks in this way, and 75% of the
the sale of others are exempted from corporation tax. Previously, corporate taxpayers Wer,
50% of such capital gains from their corporate tax base, subject to certain conditions. Wi

gains from sale of immovables will be fully taxable. Immovables which have been acquire bé&for&
s
*
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date of the new law (15 July 2023), however the exemption rate for capital gains from such immovables will be
25%.

Explanations on Accounting Policies (continued)
Explanations on taxation (continued)

Corporate tax (continued)

Tax returns are required to be filled and delivered to the related tax office until the end of the fourth month
following the balance sheet date and the accrued tax is paid until the end of the same month. Tax returns are
open for 5 years from the beginning of the year following the balance sheet date and during this period the tax
authorities have the right to audit tax returns, and the related accounting records on which they are based and
may issue re-assessments based on their findings. As of the end of the 2021 calendar year, the conditions sought
for inflation adjustment in the calculation of corporate tax have been fulfilled, within the framework of the
repeated provision of Article 298/A of the Tax Procedure Law. However, with the Law No. 7352 on the
Amendment of the Tax Procedure Law and the Corporate Tax Law, published in the Official Gazette dated 29
January 2022 and numbered 31734, the temporary article 33 was added to the Tax Procedure Law No. 213,
including the advance tax periods. Financial statements will not be subject to inflation adjustment for the 2021
and 2022 accounting periods (for those designated as a special accounting period, as of the accounting periods
ending in 2022 and 2023) and the advance tax periods for the 2023 accounting period, regardless of whether
the conditions for the repetitive inflation adjustment within the scope of Article 298 are met.

It has been enacted that the financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 December 2023 will be subject
to inflation adjustment regardless of whether the conditions for the inflation adjustment are met, and the
profit/loss differences arising from the inflation adjustment to be made will be shown in the previous years'
profit/loss account. According to the 17th article of the Law No. 7491 on Amendments to Certain Laws and
Decree Laws published in the Official Gazette No. 32413 on 28 December 2023, banks are companies within
the scope of the Financial Leasing, Factoring, Financing and Savings Finance Companies Law No. 6361 dated
21 November 2012. Profit/loss differences arising from the inflation adjustment to be made by payment and
electronic money institutions, authorized foreign exchange institutions, asset management companies, capital
market institutions, insurance and reinsurance companies and pension companies in the 2024 and 2025
accounting periods, including the provisional tax periods. It is regulated that the resulting profits or losses will

not be taken into account in determining the corporate tax base.

Income withholding tax

There is a withholding tax liability on dividend distributions, and this withholding tax liability is accrued in the
period in which the dividend payment is made. Dividend payments other than those made to non-resident
taxpayer institutions that generate income through a workplace or permanent representative in Tiirkiye and to
institutions resident in Tiirkiye are subject to 15% withholding tax. In the application of withholding tax rates
for profit distributions made to non-resident taxpayer institutions and natural persons, the withholding tax rates
included in the relevant Double Taxation Avoidance Agreements are also taken into consideration. Addition of
retained earnings to capital is not considered profit distribution, therefore it is not subject to withholding tax.

Transfer pricing

Transfer pricing is discussed under the title of “disguised profit distribution” through transfer pricing of Article
13 of the Corporate Tax Law. The details of the implementation in the “General Notification on Disguised Profit
Distribution Through Transfer Pricing™ published on November 18, 2007, have been identified.

If the taxpayers are involved in the purchase, sale or purchase of goods, services or goods thaf ot carried
out within the scope of the precedent of comparability with the parties concerned, then thes€ley s will
. Nhis

be considered to be implicitly distributed through transfer pricing. Disguised profit dist
type of transfer pricing will not be deductible from the tax base in terms of corporate t

Deferred tax
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The Bank calculates and reflects deferred tax in accordance with the provisions of “Income Taxes” (“TAS 127)
for taxable temporary differences that arise between the book value of an asset or liability and its tax basis
determined in accordance with the tax legislation. Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all resulting
temporary differences whereas deferred tax assets resulting from temporary differences are recognized to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the deferred tax assets can be
utilized. As of 31 March 2025, the tax rate used in the calculation of deferred tax assets and liabilities is 30%
on temporary differences expected to realise (31 December 2024: 30%). Deferred tax liabilities are calculated
for all taxable temporary differences, while deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
are recognized only if it is highly probable that future taxable profits will be available to utilize these differences.

Explanations on Accounting Policies (continued)

Explanations on borrowings

Except for liabilities related to financial instruments at fair value, financial liabilities are recognised at their
acquisition costs, including transaction costs, and carried at their discounted value calculated using the
“effective interest rate” in the subsequent periods. The Bank did not issued convertible bonds during the interim

reporting period.
As of 31 March 2025, the Bank has issued securities amounting to TL 4.747.107 (31 December 2024: TL
4.571.808).

In the case of assets that require significant time to be ready for use or sale (qualifying assets), borrowing costs
directly associated with their purchase, construction or production are included in the cost of the asset until the
relevant asset is made ready for use or sale. The amount of borrowing costs that can be capitalized for funds
borrowed for the purpose of acquiring a qualifying asset in a period is the amount determined by deducting the
income obtained from temporary investments of these funds from the total borrowing costs incurred for these
assets in the relevant period. All other borrowing costs recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the period
which they incurred. The Bank satisfies its resource requirements by obtaining loans from domestic and foreign
institutions, borrowing from money markets or issuing securities in domestic and foreign markets, when deemed

necessary.
Explanations on issuance of share certificates

None.

Explanations on bank drafts and letter of acceptances

None.

Explanations on government grants

None.

Explanations on operating segments

The Bank has operating activities in “Commercial and Corporate Banking”, “Treasury” and “Financial
Institutions and Investment Banking™.

Explanations on other matters

None.

Explanations on subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures

In accordance with TAS 27 “Turkish Accounting Standard for Consolidated and Swaa]
.the

Statements”, investments in associates and subsidiaries are accounted at cost and aresfecqdifis
unconsolidated financial statements after deducting the provision for impairment, if any. :
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SECTION FOUR

INFORMATION RELATED TO FINANCIAL POSITION AND RISK MANAGEMENT OF THE BANK

I

Explanations on equity
Equity and capital adequacy ratio were calculated within the framework of “Regulation on Banks” Equity™ and
“Regulation on Measurement and Evaluation of Capital Adequacy of Banks™.
As of 31 March 2025. the Bank’s total equity is calculated as TL 3.348.854 (31 December 2024: TL 2.757.042)
and capital adequacy ratio is 21.31% (31 December 2024: 24.60%). The capital adequacy standard ratio of the
Bank is above the minimum ratio determined by the relevant legislation.

Information on equity

Amount
before 1
January

Current period Amount 2024

COMMON EQUITY TIER 1 CAPITAL

Paid-in share capital following all debts in terms of claim in liquidation of the Bank 600.000
Share premiums -
Retained earmings 108.807
Gains recognized in equity as per TAS =
Profit 2.320.247
Profit for the period 252.900
2.067.347

Prior period profit
Shares acquired free of charge from subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled partnerships and cannot be recogmised
within profit for the period 3
Common Equity Tier 1 Capital Before Deductions 3.029.054
Deductions from Common Equity Tier 1 Capital
Common Equity as per the st clause of Provisional Article 9 of the Regulation on the Equity of Banks
The sum of the net loss for the current period and the previous years which could not be absorbed by the retained

carnings and losses recognised in equity in accordance with TAS 57.846
Improvement costs for operating leasing 905
Goodwill (net of related tax liability) -

131.117

Other intangible assets other than mortgage-servicing rights (nct of related tax liability)

Deferred tax assets that rely on future profitability excluding those arising from temporary differences (net of related
tax liability)

Cash-flow hedge reserve

Shortfall of provisions to expected [osses

Secuntisation gain on sale 30915
Gains and losses due to changes in own credit risk on fair valued liabilitics

Defined-benefit pension fund net assets

Investments in own shares

Credits extended contrary to the fourth paragraph of Articles 56 of the Banking Law

Investments in the capital of banking, financial and insurance entities thal are outside the scope of regulatory
consolidation, net of eligible short positions, where the bank does not own more than 10% of the issued share capital
{amount above 10% threshold)

Investments in the capital of banking, financial and insurance entities that are outside the scope of regulatory
consolidation, net of eligible short positions, where the bank owns more than 10% of the issued share capital
(amount above 10% threshold)

Mortgage servicing rights (amount above 10% threshold)

Deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences (amount above 10% threshold, net of related tax liability)
Amount exceeding the 15% threshold (-) of the common equity Tier 1 in accordance with the second paragraph of
{he provisional article 2 in the regulation regarding the Banks’ Equity

The amount above threshold for the investments in the capital of banking, financial and insurance entities thal are
outside the scope of regulatory consolidation, net of eligible short positions, where the bank owns more than 10% of
the issued share capital

The amount above threshold for mortgage servicing rights

The amount above threshold for deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences

National specific regulatory adjustments which shall be determined by the BRSA

Regulatory adjustments applied to Common Equity Tier 1 due to insufficient Additional Tier | and Tier 2 to cover

deductions
Total regulatory adjustments to Common equity Tier 1
Common Equity Tier 1 capital (CET 1)
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INFORMATION RELATED TO FINANCIAL POSITION AND RISK MANAGEMENT OF THE BANK (continued)

I. Explanations on equity (continued)

a) Information on equity (continued)

ADDITIONAL TIER 1 CAPITAL
Preferred sharcs that are not included in Common Equity Tier | capital and related shares issue premiums
Eligible capital instruments and relevant share issue premiums that are approved by the BRSA
Eligible capital instruments and relevant share issue premiums that are approved by the BRSA (For the purposes of the
Provisional Article 4 of the Regulation on Banks’ Own Funds)
Additional Tier 1 capital before regulatory adjustments
Additional Tier 1 capital: regulatory adjustments
Investments in own Additional Tier 1 instruments
Investments of Bank to Banks that invest in Bank's additional equity and components of equity issued by financial
institutions with compatible with Article 7
Investments in (he capital of banking, financial and insurance entities that are outside the scope of regulatory
consolidation, net of eligible short positions, where the bank does not own more than 10% of the issued common share
capital of the entity (amount above 10% threshold)
The total of net long position of the direct or indirect investments in additional Tier I capital of unconsolidated banks
and financial institutions where the bank owns more than 10% of the issued share capital
Other items to be defined by the BRSA
Regulatory Adjustments which will be deducted from Tier 1 capital during the transition period
Goodwill and other intangible assets which will not deducted from Common Equity Tier 1 capital for the purposes of
the first sub-paragraph of the Provisional Article 2 of the Regulation on Banks' Own Funds (-)
Net deferred tax asset/liability which is not deducted from Common Equity Tier | capital for the purposes of the
subparagraph of the Provisional Article 2 of the Regulation on Banks™ Own Funds (-)
Regulatory adjustments applied to Additional Tier | due to insufficient Tier 2 to cover deductions
Total regulatory adjustments to Additional Tier 1 capital =
Total Additional Tier 1 capital 377.656
Total Tier 1 capital (Tier | capital = Common Equity Tier 1 capital + Additional Tier 1 capital} 3.185.927
TIER 2 CAPITAL
Eligible capital instruments and relevant share issue premiums that are approved by the Agency
Eligible capital instruments and relevant share issuc premiums that are approved by the Agency (For the purposes of _
the Provisional Article 4 of the Regulation on Banks’ Own Funds)
Provisions (Article 8 of the Repulation on the Equity of Banks) 162.927
Tier 2 capital before regulatory adjustments 162.927
Tier 2 capital: regulatory adjustments
Direct and indirect investments of the Bank on its own Tier 2 Capital (-)
Investments of the Bank to banks that invest on the Bank's Tier 2 and components of equity issued by financial
institutions with the conditions declared in Article 8
Investments in the capital of banking, financial and insurance entities that are outside the scope of regulatory
consolidation, net of eligible short positions, where the bank does not own more than 10% of the issued common share
capital of the entity (amount above the 10% threshold) (-)
Significant investments in the capital banking, financial and insurance entities that are outside the scope of regulatory
consolidation (net of eligible short positions) (amount above the 10% threshold) (-)
National specific regulatory adjustments which shall be determined by the BRSA (-)
Total regulatory adjustments to Tier 2 capital -
Total Tier 2 capital 162.927
Total Capital (The sum of Tier 1 capital and Tier 2 capital) 3.348.854
The Sum of Tier 1 Capital and Tier 2 Capital (Total Capital)
Credits extended contrary to the provisions of Articles 50 and 51 of the Banking Law
Net Book Values of Movables and Immovables Exceeding the Limit Defined in the Article 57, Clause 1 of the Banking
Law and the Assets Acquired against Overdue Receivables and Held for Sale but Retained more than Five Years
National specific regulatory adjustments which shall be determined by the BRSA
Regulatory Adjustments which will be deducted from total capital during the transition period
Investments in the capital of banking, financial and insurance entities that are outside the scope of regulatory
consolidation, net of eligible short positions, where the bank does not own more than 10% of the issued common share
capital of the entity (amount above the 10% threshold) which will not deducted from Common Equity Tier 1 capital.
Additional Tier 1 capital, Tier 2 capital for the purposes of the first sub -paragraph of the Provisional Article 2 of the
Regulation on Banks’ Own Funds (-)
Significant investments in the Additional Tier | capital and Tier 2 capital of banking, financial and insurance entities
that are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation, net of eligible short positions (amount above 10% threshold)
which will niot deducted from Common Equity Tier 1 capital, Additional Tier | capital, Tier 2 capital for the purposes
of the first sub-paragraph of the Provisional Article 2 of the Regulation on Banks™ Own Funds (-)

377.656

27



CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION OF THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH

DESTEK YATIRIM BANKASI ANONIM SiRKETI

NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS OF AND FOR THE INTERIM

PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

(Amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL™) unless otherwise indicated.)
Significant investments in the common stock of banking, financial and insurance entities that are outside the scope of
regulatory consolidation, net of cligible short positions (amount above 10% threshold), mortgage servicing rights
(amount above 10% threshold), deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences and morigaging services
(amount above 10% threshold, net of related tax liability) which will not deducted from Common Equity Tier 1 capital
for the purposes of the first sub-paragraph of the Provisional Article 2 of the Regulation on Banks™ Own Funds (-)

INFORMATION RELATED TO FINANCIAL POSITION AND RISK MANAGEMENT OF THE BANK (continued)
I. Explanations on equity (continued)

a) Information on equity (continued)
OWN FUNDS
Total Capital (The sum of Tier | capital and Tier 2 capital) 3 348854
Total Risk Weighted Assets 15.715.747
CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIOS
Common Equity Tier 1 Capital Adequacy Ratio (%) 17.87
20.27

Tier 1 Capital Adeguacy Ratio (%)
Capital Adequacy Ratio (% 21.31

BUFFERS
Institution specific buffer requirement of the Bank (atbtc) 2.52
a)Capital conservation buffer requirement (%) 2.50
b) Bank’s specific countercyclical buffer requirement (%) 0.02
¢) Systematic bank buffer requirement (%) =
The ratio of Additional Common Equity Tier | capital which will be calculated by the first paragraph of the Article 4
of Regulation on Capital Conservation and C ountercyclical Capital buffers to Risk Weighted Assets (%)
Amounts below the Excess Limits as per the Deduction Principles
Portion of the total of net long positions of investments in equity items of unconsolidated banks and financial
institutions where the bank owns 10% or less of the issued share capital exceeding the 10% threshold of above Tier |
capital
Portion of the total of investments in equity items of unconsolidated banks and financial institutions where the bank
owns 10% or less of the issued share capital exceeding the 10% threshold of above Tier I capital
Mortgage servicing rights (net of related tax liability)
Deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences (net of related tax liability)
Limits related to provisions considered in Tier 1 calculation
General provisions for standard based receivables (before ten thousand twenty-five limitation)
Up to 1.25% of total risk-weighted amount of general provisions for receivables where the standard approach used
Excess amount of total provision amount to credit risk Amount of the Internal Ratings Based Approach in

accordance with the Communiqué on the Calculation
Excess amount of total provision amount to 0.6% of risk weighied receivables of credit risk Amount of the Intemal

162.927
162927

Ratings Based Approach in accordance with the Communiqué on the Caleulation
Debt instruments subjected to Article 4 (to be implemented between January 1, 2018 and January 1, 2022)
Upper limit for Additional Tier I Capital subjected to temporary Article 4
Amounts Excess the Limits of Additional Tier T Capital subjected to temporary Article 4
Upper limit for Additional Tier II Capital subjected to temporary Article 4
Amounts Excess the Limits of Additional Tier I Capital subjected to temporary Article 4

(1) Amaounts in this column represents the amounts of items that are subject to transition provisions

The difference between Total Capital and Equity in the unconsolidated balance sheet mainly arises from
expected credit loss provisions arising from loans classified under stage I and stage IT and subordinated loans.
In the calculation of Total Capital, up to 1.25% of expected credit loss from stage 1 and stage 2 over the credit
risk amount and subordinated loans with nominal amounts are taken into consideration as Tier 11 Capital.
Additionally, the losses reflected to equity which is subject to deduction from TIER 1 capital are determined
by excluding the losses from cash flow hedging. On the other hand, in the calculation of the Total Capital,
improvement costs for operating leases classified under property, plant and equipment in the balance sheet,
intangible assets and related deferred tax liabilities, other items defined by the regulator are taken into

consideration as amounts deducted from Total Capital.

In accordance with the scope of the regulation issued by the Banking Regulation and Supeg#sio
amount subject to credit risk is calculated with the Central Bank foreign exchange buyi#ig rates &
2024 and the net valuation differences of the securities in the securities portfolio whos ;
reflected in other comprehensive income are negative. In this case, these differences arg :
in the equity amount to be used for the capital adequacy ratio. As of 31 March 2(25stha 4T fofeigh
exchange buying rate on 28 June 2024 was used in the capital adequacy ratio calculati Ns #hd 0% Tiskswel
was applied to receivables from the Central Bank of the Republic of Tiirkiye (the “CBR . ‘quet
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INFORMATION RELATED TO FINANCIAL POSITION AND RISK MANAGEMENT OF THE BANK (continued)

I. Explanations on equity (continued)

Amount

before 1

January

Prior period Amount 2024

COMMON EQUITY TIER 1 CAPITAL

Paid-in share capital following all debts in terms of ¢laim in liquidation of the Bank 600.000
Share premiums -
Retained eamings 51.259
Gains recognized in equity as per TAS (550)
Profit 2.124.895
Profil for the period 1.150.967
973.928

Prior period profit
Shares acquired free of charge from subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled partnerships and cannot be recognised
within profit for the period s
Commaon Equity Tier 1 Capital Before Deductions 2.775.604
Deductions from Common Equity Tier 1 Capital
Common Equity as per the 1st clause of Provisional Article 9 of the Regulation on the Equity of Banks
The sumn of the net loss for the current period and the previous years which could not be absorbed by the retained

earnings and losses recognised in equity in accordance with TAS 7.328
Improvement costs for operating leasing 905
Goodwill (net of related tax liability) -

123.91¢

Other intangible assets other than mortgage-servicing rights (net of related tax liability)

Deferred tax assets that rely on future profitability excluding those arising from temporary differences (net of related
tax liability)

Cash-flow hedge reserve

Shortfall of provisions 10 expected losses

Securitisation gain on sale

Gains and losses due to changes in own credit risk on fair valued liabilities

Defined-benefit pension fund net assels

Investments in own shares

Credits extended contrary to the fourth paragraph of Articles 56 of the Banking Law

Investments in the capital of banking, financial and insurance entities that are outside the scope of regulatory
consolidation, net of eligible short positions, where the bank does not own more than 10% of the issued share capital
(amount above 10% threshold)

Investments in the capital of banking, financial and insurance entities that are outside the scope of regulatory
consolidation. net of eligible short positions, where the bank owns more than 10% of the issued share capital
(amount above 10% threshold)

Mortgage servicing rights (amount above 10% threshold)

Deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences (amount above 10% threshold, net of related tax hability) -
Amount exceeding the 15% threshold (-) of the common equity Tier 1 in accordance with the second paragraph of
the provisional article 2 in the regulation regarding the Banks™ Equity

The amount above threshold for the investments in the capital of banking, financial and insurance entities that are
outside the scope of regulatory consolidation, net of eligible short positions, where the bank owns more than 10% of
the issued share capital

The amount above threshold for mortgage servicing rights

The amount above threshold for deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences

National specific regulatory adjustments which shall be determined by the BRSA

Regulatory adjustments applied to Common Equity Tier 1 duc to insufficient Additional Tier 1 and Tier 2 to cover

deductions
Total regulatory adjustments to Common equity Tier 1 132.152
2.643.452

Common Equity Tier 1 capital (CET 1)
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INFORMATION RELATED TO FINANCIAL POSITION AND RISK MANAGEMENT OF THE BANK (continued)

I. Explanations on equity (continued)

a) Information on equity (continued)

ADDITIONAL TIER 1 CAPITAL
Preferred shares that are not included in Common Equity Tier | capital and related shares issue premiums
Eligible capital instruments and relevant share issue premiums that are approved by the BRSA -
Eligible capital instruments and relevant share issue premiums that are approved by the BRSA (For the purposes of
the Provisional Article 4 of the Regulation on Banks® Own Funds)
Additional Tier 1 capital before regulatory adjustments
Additional Tier 1 capital: regulatory adjustments
Investments in own Additional Tier | instrnuments
Investments of Bank to Banks that invest in Bank's additional equity and components of equity issued by financial
institutions with compatible with Article 7
Investments in the capital of banking, financial and insurance entities that are oulside the scope of regulatory
consolidation, net of eligible short positions, where the bank does not own more than 10% of the issued common
share capital of the entity (amount above 10% threshold)
The Total of Net Long Position of the Direct or Indireet Investments in Additional Tier I Capital of Unconsolidated
Banks and Financial Institutions where the Bank Owns more than 10% of the Issued Share Capital
Other items to be defined by the BRSA
Regulatory Adjustments which will be deducted from Tier 1 capital during the transition period
Goodwill and other intangible assets and related deferred tax liabilities which will not deducted from Common
Equity Tier 1 capital for the purposes of the first sub-paragraph of the Provisional Article 2 of the Regulation on
Banks® Own Funds (<)
Net deferred tax asset/liability which is not deducted from Common Equity Tier | capital for the purposes of the
subparagraph of the Provisional Article 2 of the Regulation on Banks™ Own Funds (-)
Regulatory adjustments applied to Additional Tier | due to insufficient Tier 2 to cover deductions
Total regulatory adjustments to Additional Tier 1 capital
Total Additional Tier 1 capital 2
Total Tier 1 capital (Tier 1 capital = Common Equity Tier 1 capital + Additional Tier 1 capital) 2.643.452
TIER 2 CAPITAL
Eligible capital instruments and relevant share issuc premiums that are approved by the Agency
Eligible capital instruments and relevant share issue premiums that are approved by the Agency (For the purposes of )
the Provisional Article 4 of the Regulation on Banks” Own Funds)

Provisions (Article 8 of the Regulation on the Equity of Banks) 113,590
Tier 2 capital before regulatory adjustments 113.590
Tier 2 capital: regulatory adjustments

Direct and indirect investments of the Bank on its own Tier 2 Capital (-) -

Investments of the Bank to banks that invest on the Bank's Tier 2 and components of equity issued by financial

institutions with the conditions declared in Arlicle 8 -

Investments in the capital of banking, financial and insurance entities that are outside the scope of regulatory

consolidation, net of eligible short positions, where the bank does not own more than 10% of the issued common

share capital of the entity (amount above the 10% threshold) (-) -

Significant investments in the capital banking, financial and insurance entities that are outside the scope of

regulatory consolidation (net of eligible short positions) (amount above the 10% threshold) (-) -

National specific regulatory adjustments which shall be determined by the BRSA (-) -

Taotal regulatory adjustments to Tier 2 capital -

Total Tier 2 capital 113.590
2.757.042

Total Capital (The sum of Tier 1 capital and Tier 2 capital)
The Sum of Tier 1 Capital and Tier 2 Capital (Total Capital)

Credits extended contrary to the provisions of Articles 50 and 51 of the Banking Law
Net Book Values of Movables and Immovables Exceeding the Limit Defined in the Article 57, Clause 1 of the
Banking Law and the Assets Acquired against Overdue Receivables and Held for Sale but Retained more than Five
Years
National specific regulatory adjustments which shall be determined by the BRSA

Regulatory Adjustments which will be deducted from total capital during the transition period
lnvestments in the capital of banking, financial and insurance entities that arc outside the scope of regulatory
consolidation, net of eligible short positions, where the bank does not own more than 10% of the issued common
share capital of the entity (amount above the 10% threshold) which will not deducted from Commen Equity Tier |
capital, Additional Tier 1 capital, Tier 2 capital for the purposes of the first sub -paragraph of the Provisional Article
2 of the Regulation on Banks” Own Funds (-)
Significant investments in the Additional Tier 1 capital and Tier 2 capital of banking, financial and insurance entities
{hat are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation, net of eligible short positions (amount above 10% threshold)
which will not deducted from Common Equity Tier 1 capital, Additional Tier | capital, Tier 2 capital for the
purposes of the first sub-paragraph of the Provisional Article 2 of the Regulation on Banks® Own Funds (-)
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Significant investments in the common stock of banking, financial and insurance entities that are ouiside the scope of
regulatory consolidation, net of eligible short positions (amount ahove 10% threshold), mortgage servicing rights
(amount above 10% threshold), deferred tax asscts arising from temporary differences and mortgaging services
(amount above 10% threshold, net of related tax liability) which will not deducted from Common Equity Tier |
capital for the purposes of the first sub-paragraph of the Provisional Article 2 of the Regulation on Banks’ Own
Funds (-)

INFORMATION RELATED TO FINANCIAL POSITION AND RISK MANAGEMENT OF THE BANK (continued)

1. Explanations on equity (continued)

a) Information on equity (continued)
OWN FUNDS
Total Capital (The sum of Tier | capital and Tier 2 capital) 2.757.042
Total Risk Weighted Assets 11.207.923
CAPITAL ADEQUACY RATIOS
Common Equity Tier 1 Capital Adequacy Ratio (%) 23.59
Tier 1 Capital Adequacy Ratio (%) 23.59
Capital Adequacy Ratio (%) 24.60
BUFFERS
Institution specific buffer requirement of the Bank (a+b-+c) 2.54
a)Capital conservation buffer requirement (%) 2.50
b) Bank's specific countercyclical buffer requirement (%) 0.04
¢) Systematic bank buffer requirement (%) -
The ratio of Additional Common Equity Tier 1 capital which will be calculated by the first paragraph of the Article 4
of Regulation on Capital Conservation and Countetcyclical Capital buffers to Risk Weighted Assets (%) =
Amounts below the Excess Limits as per the Deduction Principles
Portion of the total of net long positions of investments in equity items of unconsolidated banks and tinancial
institutions where the bank owns 10% or less of the issued share capital exceeding the 10% threshold of above Tier |
capital -
Partion of the total of investments in equity items of Unconsolidated banks and financial institutions where the bank
owns 10% or less of the issued share capital exceeding the 10% threshold of above Tier | capital -
Mortgage servicing rights (net of related tax liability) -
Deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences {net of related tax liability) -
Limits related to provisions considered in Tier 11 calculation
General provisions for standard based receivables (before ten thousand twenty-five limitation) 113.590
Up to 1.25% of total risk-weighted amount of general provisions for receivables where the standard approach used 113.590

Excess amount of total provision amount to credit risk Amount of the Internal Ratings Based Approach in

accordance with the Communiqué on the Calculation
Excess amount of total provision amount to 0.6% of risk weighted receivables of credit risk Amount of the Tnternal

Ratings Based Approach in accordance with the Communiqué on the Calculation

Debt instruments subjected to Article 4 (to be implemented between January 1, 2018 and January 1, 2022)

Upper limit for Additional Tier I Capital subjected to temporary Article 4
Amounts Excess the Limits of Additional Tier I Capital subjected to temporary Article 4
Upper limit for Additional Tier IT Capital subjected to temporary Article 4
Amounts Excess the Limits of Additional Tier 11 Capital subjected to temporary Article 4

(1) Amounts in this column represents the amounts of items that are subject to transition provisions
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INFORMATION RELATED TO FINANCIAL POSITION AND RISK MANAGEMENT OF THE BANK (continued)

I. Explanations on equity (continued)

b) Debt instruments included in equity calculation

[ssuer

Destek Yatinm Bankasi A S

Tdentifier(s) (CUSIP, ISIN etc.)

Governing law (5) of the instrumen

BRSA / Turkish Law

Regulatory freatment

Subject to 10% deduction as of 1/1/2015

- fri p? Fasdid bads
Eligible.on andfor o basy Uneonsolidued and Consolidated
Instrument type Bond

Amount recognized in regulatory capital (Currency in million USD, as of most recent Teponing

date) 10

Neminal value of instrument {million USD) 10

Accounting classification of the instrument

347001 - Subordinated Berrowing [nstruments

Issuance date of instrument

07.02.2025

Maturity structure of the instrument (demand‘time)

Demand

07.02.2025

Original maturity of the instrument
ssuer call subject to prior supervisory (BRSA) approval Yes
Optional call date, contingent call dates and redemption amount 07.08.2030

Subsequent call dates, if applicable

Every 6-month interest payment period after 07.08 2030

Interest/Divident Payments

Fixed or floating coupon‘dividend payments

Floating

Coupon rate and any related index

First § years: %.40% fxed; second 5 years: Interest rate 1S Treasury fixed-term borrowing rate plus
4,94% Margin to be applied

Existence of any dividend payment restriction

Yes

Fully discretionary, partially discretionary or mandatory

The Bank has the authority to cancel interest and dividend payments, and if it exercises this suthority, it wil
not e required 10 pay the difference between the amount specified in the agreement and the amount
actually paid, including the amount not paid. in subsequent periods.

Existence of step up or other incemive to redecm

Noncumulative or cumulative

MNoncumulative

Convertibility into Shares

Convertible of non-convertible into equity shares

If the Bank's TIER | capital adequacy ratio or consclidated core capital adequacy ratio falls below 5.125%,
the Bank shall have the right to reduce the value of these debt instruments or convert them into shares.

1f convertible, conversion trigger {5)

An amount sufficient to ensure that the Bank's TIER | capital adequacy rario or consolidated core capital

adequacy rativ reaches at least 5,125 percent may be subject Lo a write-down or conversion into shares,

If convertible, fully or partially

If convertible, conversion rate Yes

If convertible, type of instrument convertible into -

If convertible. 1ssuer of instrument to be converted into -
Write-down feature

Duc o the losses incurred, where the Bank is at the point at which the BRSA may determine pursuant to
Aticle 71 of the Banking Law thar: (i) its operating lLicense is to be revoked and the Bank is liquidated or
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(ii} the rights of all of 15 shareholders (except 10 dividends), and the manag supervision of the
Bank, are ta be ransferred o the SDIF on the condition that Josses 2 [ atal of
existing shareholders (occurrence of either condition means the isgflier has © L (mi)itis
If hands can be written-down, write-down trigger(s) probable that the Issuer will become non-viable: then the bonds be wri \ el
— —_.‘,.‘_
Ifbond can be written-down, full or partial Partially or fully FY 5
If bond can be written-down, permanent or temporary Continucusly - Al 1
If temporary write-down, description of write-up mechanism - P ).z N 7, f ~ !
- T . -
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In the event of the Bank's liquidation, the right to eolleet the ¢laim from the owner shall be exercised afler
the deposit holders, other creditors, and debt instruments included in the calculation of contributed capral

Position [n subordination hierarchy i case of liquidarion (instrument 1ype
immediately senior to the instrument}

In compliance with article number 7 and & of " Own fund regulation ”
The instrument is in compliance with article number 7.

The instrument is not in compliant with article numbered 8

Details of incompliances with article number 7 and 8 of " Own fund regulation”

INFORMATION RELATED TO FINANCIAL POSITION AND RISK MANAGEMENT OF THE BANK (continued)

I. Explanations on equity (continued)

c) Disclosures to ensure reconciliation between the information regarding equity items and the
balance sheet amounts

Credit risk is the probability of loss due to the failure of the borrower to fulfil its obligations partially or
completely on time by not complying with the contractual requirements of the loan customer and the
possibility of loss due to a decrease in creditworthiness. The Bank sets credit limits for counterparties in order
to achieve risk limitation in lending transactions which are subject to credit risk and does not allocate loans
above these limits. While determining these limits, the financial structure and debt payment capacities of the
customers are taken into consideration as well as the credit policies and strategies determined by the Bank.
The Bank includes the credit risks incurred due to all kinds of transactions specified in the Banking Law No.
5411 and within the scope of credit. Credit risks incurred due to new products and services planned to be
offered by the Bank are also evaluated in this context.

1L Explanations on credit risk

Calculation of the amount subject to credit risk in the Bank is realised according to the “*Standard Approach™
within the framework of the “Regulation on Measurement and Assessment of Capital Adequacy of Banks™.

In order to ensure effectiveness in risk management, information is provided at regular intervals on the basis
of informing the senior management about the developments in credit risk management and the results of the
analyses and studies carried out accordingly regarding effectiveness in risk management. When assuming
credit risk, actions are taken in compliance with the limits set forth by the Banking Law. The Bank has internal
“risk limits™ established in accordance with its portfolio structure and risk appetite, and adherence to these
limits is monitored by designated control officers at three levels of oversight.

The Bank determined policies regarding credit risk management and realises its “Credit Policy™ on the basis
of its risk management. Regarding the Bank’s risk management policy, the Bank's credit standards regarding
the loans to be allocated to customers to be included in the corporate loan portfolio have been determined by
adhering to the legal legislation and banking ethical rules. The general principles and procedures of the loan
have been regulated, and the duties, authorities, responsibilities and obligations regarding the loan process
have been determined. The detailed analysis of the credit allocation process is included in the “Credit
Allocation and Credit Monitoring Procedure™.

The Bank allocates its existing loans to Article numbered 11 “Communiqué on Methods and Principles for
Determining the Nature of Loans and Other Receivables and Allocation of Provisions™ published by BRSA.
In the evaluation of customers, the Bank uses the “internal rating system™ developed within the Bank and
which takes into account the behavioral characteristics of the customers as well as their financial data. In
accordance with the rules determined in the “Credit Allocation and Credit Monitoring Procedure™, the Bank
regularly monitors the credit worthiness of all credit customers in the portfolio and prepares action plans

accordingly.

The Bank has no overdue or closely monitored loans.

As of 31 March 20235, the Bank has 36 cash loans from its customers amounting to TL 15.18’ "
cash loans from its customers amounting to TL 6.191.086. The Bank’s largest 100 and 2¢0

balance sheet and off-balance sheet items.
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INFORMATION RELATED TO FINANCIAL POSITION AND RISK MANAGEMENT OF THE BANK (continued)

I1L.

Explanations on currency risk

The difference between the Bank’s foreign currency denominated and foreign currency indexed assets and
liabilities is defined as the “Net Foreign Currency Position™ and is the basis of currency risk.

Foreign currency risk indicates the probability of loss that banks are subject to due to the exchange rate
movements in the market.

Currency risks are calculated on monthly basis in the risk table within the scope of the Standard Method and
the results are reported to the relevant official bodies and the Bank management. Currency risk is considered
in the calculation of the Capital Adequacy Ratio as a part of the market risk.

Currency risk is managed and monitored in accordance with all legal regulations and risk limits and early
warning limits determined by the Board of Directors as a component of market risk.

The Bank’s publicly announced foreign exchange bid rates for USD and EUR as of the date of the financial
statements denominated in Turkish Lira (“TL”) and for the last five working days prior to that date are as
follows:

(The exchange rates indicated below are presented in TL 1.)

USD EUR
Balance sheet evaluation rate (31 March 2025) (First day current bid rate) 37.7656 40.7019
28 March 2023 37.7656 40.7019
27 March 2025 37.9287 40.9326
26 March 2025 37.9086 40.9489
25 March 2025 37.8600 41.0400
24 March 2025 37.8502 41.0195

The simple arithmetic average of the Bank’s foreign exchange bid rates denominated in USD and EUR for the

last thirty days preceding the balance sheet date are presented in the table below:

USD 1 36.9629
EUR 1 39.8614
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INFORMATION RELATED TO FINANCIAL POSITION AND RISK MANAGEMENT OF THE BANK (continued)
I11. Explanations on currency risk (continued)

Information related to Bank’s currency risk

Other

EUR USD  currencies Total
31 March 2025
Assets
Cash (Cash on hand, effectives, cash in transit, cheques purchased) and 955 1.362.208 94 418 1.457.581
balances with the Central Bank of the Republic of Tiirkiye
Banks 21.661 68.099 53.979 143.739
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - - - -
Receivables from money market - - - -
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 92.461 - 92.461

Loans 1.390.643 7.466.746 - 8.857.389

Investments in associates, subsidiaries and joint ventures
Financial assets at amortised cost =

Hedging derivative financial assets - 19.171 - 19.171
Property, plant and equipment - - - -
Intangible assets - - - -
Other assets - 920.134 - 920.134
Total assets 1.413.259 9.928.819 148.397 11.490475
Liabilities

Bank deposits - - - -
Foreign currency deposits - - - -
Funds from money market 7.303 25.397 2.047 34.747
Funds borrowed from other financial institutions 123.153 6.435.628 39372 6.598.153
Issued securities (! - 4295616 - 4.295.616
Miscellaneous payables 6.228 350.802 24,158 381.188
Hedging derivative financial liabilities - 24.216 - 24.216
Other liabilitics 1.346.173 2.064.610 251.154 3.661.937
Total liabilities 1.482.857 13.196.269 316.731  14.995.857
Net on balance sheet position (69.598) (3.267.450) (168.334) (3.505.382)
Net-off balance sheet position 48.735 3.267.324 172.874 3.488.933
Financial derivative assets 1.371.547  14.189.937 266916  15.828.400
Financial derivative liabilities 1.322.812 10922613 94.042  12.339.467
Non-cash loans (*) 171.524 24.649 - 196.173
31 December 2024

Total assets 624.192 7.686.332 90.920 8.401.444
Total liabilities 1.191.299  10.865.080 100.456 12.156.835
Net on balance sheet position (567.107) (3.178.748) (9.536) (3.755.391)
Net-off balance sheet position 535.944 3.112.762 17.787 3.666.493
Financial derivative assets 735.532  11.431.677 81.241  12.248.550
Financial derivative liabilities 199,588 8318915 63.554 8.582.057
Non-cash loans 158.253 109.364 - 267.617

(*) Non-cash loans are not included in the total of “Net-off balance sheet position™.

(1) Includes bonds issued presented in subordinated loans presented under subordinated loans item in the balance sheet
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INFORMATION RELATED TO FINANCIAL POSITION AND RISK MANAGEMENT OF THE BANK (continued)

IV. Explanations on interest rate risk

“Interest Rate Risk™ can be defined as the impact of interest rate changes on interest-sensitive asset and liability
items of both on and off-balance sheets and represents as the loss for the Bank.

Interest sensitivity regarding the asset and liability items included in the balance sheet and off-balance sheet
items is measured and evaluated by the Asset-Liability Committee (“ALCO”).

The Bank has monitored the matters such as measurement, analysis and reporting regarding the management
of interest rate risk with relevant procedures.

The influence of the interest rate risk in the current period on net income and equity was immaterial.

Interest rate sensitivity of assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet items (Based on repricing dates)

Upto 312 Syears . hom
month Ia months  1-5 years and over MSErEsl

months i bearing Total
31 March 2025
Assets
Cash (cash on hand, effectives, cash in transit, cheques 846.209 612.629 1458 838
purchased) and balances with the Central Bank of the
Republic of Tirkive
Banks 136.254 103.089 239.343
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - - - - - - .
Receivables from money market 1.256.388 - - - - - 1.256.388
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive - 66.615 - 1415345 92 461 - 1.574.421
income
Loans 6.075397 2339488 6.767.657 - - - 15.182.542
Financial assets at amortised cost - - - - - - -
Other assets " - - - - - 1.858.810 1.858.810
Total assets 8.314.248 2.406.103  6.767.657 1415345 92461 2.574.528  21.570.342
Liabilities
Bank deposits - - - - - - -
Funds - - - - - - -
Funds [rom money market 1.537.720 - - - B E 1.537.720
Miscellaneous payables - - - - -~ 413.044 413.044
Issued securities " - - 4353311 393796  382.882 - 5.129.989
Other funds - 1.298.235 5299918 - - - 6.598.153
Other liabilities 2.576.635 73.608 - - - 5.241.193 7.891.436
Total liabilities 4.114.355  1.371.843  9.653.229 393,796 382.882 5.654.237  21.570.342
Balance sheet long position 4199893 1.034.260 - 1.021.549 - - 6.255.702
Balance sheet short position - - (2.885572) - (290421) (3.079.709) (6.255.702)

Net off-balance sheet long position - -
Net off-balance sheet short position - - - - -
Total position 4.199.893 1.034.260 (2.885.572) 1.021.549 (290.421) (3.079.709) -

() Property. plant and equipment, intangible assets, derivative financial assets and other assets are presented in the “other assets™.
@ Derivative financial liabilities, funds, other funds, provisions, current tax period expense, deferred tax liability and equity are
presented in the “other liabilities™.

(%) Includes bonds issued presented in subordinated loans presented under subordinated loans item in the balance sheet.
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INFORMATION RELATED TO FINANCIAL POSITION AND RISK MANAGEMENT OF THE BANK (continued)

Explanations on interest rate risk (continued)

Uptol 3-12 S years : Mo
month 19 months  1-5 years and over AR ER

months » bearing Total
31 December 2024
Assets
Cash (cash on hand. effectives, cash in transit, cheques 469,798 - - - - 100.241 570.039
purchased) and balances with the Central Bank of the
Republic of Tirkiye
Banks T88.477 - - - - 182.689 971,166
Financial assets at tair value through profit or loss - - - - . = -
Receivables from money market 600.800 - - - - - 600.800
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive - 2.780 34988  1.029.400 88.755 - 1.155.923
income
Loans 5455134 1.865.729 4812032 - = - 12.132.895
Financial assets at amortised cost - - - - - - -
Other assets ‘" - - - - - 1.094.461 1.094.461
Total assets 7.314.209  1.868.509  4.847.020  1.029.400  88.755 1.377.391 16.525.284
Liabilities
Bank deposits - - - - - - -
Funds - - - - - - -
Funds from money market 178.114 - - = - 178.114
Miscellaneous payables - - - - - -
Issued securities 552478 541401 3.117.546 360383 - - 4.571.808
Other funds 353881 761.528 147.076  3.785.197 - - 5.047.682
Other liabilities ™ 2.026.106 10.400 - - - 4691174 6.727.680
Total liabilities 3.110.579  1.313.329  3.264.622  4.145.580 4.691.174  16.525.284
Balance sheet long position 4.203.630 555180  1.582.398 - 88.755 - 6.429.961
Balance sheet short position - - - (3.116.180) (3.313.783)  (7.357.691)
Net off-balance sheet long position - - - - - - -
Net off-balance sheet short position - - - - - - -
Total position 4.203.630  555.180 1.582.398 (3.116.180)  88.755 (3.313.783) -

(1 Property, plant and equipment, intangible assets. derivative financial assets and other assets are presented in the “other assets™.

21 Derivative financial liabilities, funds, other funds, provisions, current tax period expense, deferred tax liability and equity are

presented in the “other labilities™.

Average interest rates for monetary financial instruments (%)

31 March 2025

EUR

USD JPY

TL

Assets

Cash (cash on hand, effectives, cash in transit, cheques purchased) and
balances with the Central Bank of the Republic of Tirkiye

Banks
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Receivables from money market

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Loans
Financial assets at amortised cost

Liabilities

Bank deposits

Other deposits

Funds from money market
Miscellaneous payables
Issued securities

Other funds

Other liabilities

1.00

315
2.74

1.70 -

6.63 »
9.68 -

44.24

45.99
30.73
52.64
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INFORMATION RELATED TO FINANCIAL POSITION AND RISK MANAGEMENT OF THE BANK (continued)

IV. Explanations on interest rate risk (continued)

Average interest rates for monetary financial instruments (%)

31 December 2024

EUR Usb JPY TL

Assets

Cash (cash on hand, effectives, cash in transit, cheques purchased) and
balances with the Central Bank of the Republic of Tiirkiye

Banks

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Receivables from money market

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Loans

Financial assets at amortised cost

Liabilities

Bank deposits

Other deposits

Funds from money market
Miscellaneous payables
Issued securities

Other funds

Other liabilities

= 1.70 - 47.37

- - 48.72
- 6.63 - 51.93
8.95 10.23 - 54.79

1.00 2.73 - 40.00

- 8.13 - 50.86
3.15 8.28 - -
2.88 4.69 £ 43.22

Disclosures on interest rate risks arising from banking book and accounts

Repricing term mismatch and duration mismatch analyses, net economic value change analyses under different
interest rate stress scenarios and income simulations are used for interest rate risk management. The interest
rate risk arising from banking book is calculated and reported according to “Regulation on Measurement and
Evaluation of Interest Rate Risk in Banking Account” with “Standard Shock Method™ published in the Official
Gazette numbered 28034 on 23 August 2011. The Bank’s calculation of the interest rate risk derived from

banking books is presented below:

Current period- Shocks applied (+/- Gains/Equity
Currency x basis points) ! Gains/Losses - Losses/ Equity

1 TL 500 (153.102) (4.57%)
(400) 132918 3.97%

2 EUR 200 (10.838) (0.32%)
(200) 11.215 0.33%

3 USD 200 243.631 7.28%
(200) (286.253) (8.55%)

Total (of negative shocks) - (142.120) (4.24%)
79.692 2.38%

Total (of positive shocks) -

) Separate lines as items are used for each shock of different intensity and direction apphied to a currency.

V.  Explanations on position risk of equity securities

None.
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INFORMATION RELATED TO FINANCIAL POSITION AND RISK MANAGEMENT OF THE BANK (continued)

a)

b)

c)

d)

VI. Explanations on ligiudity risk management and ligiudity coverage ratio

Explanations on the Bank related to the liquidity risk management including the Bank’s risk capacity,
responsibilities and structure of liquidity risk management, reporting of liquidity risk in internal
banking, the strategy of liquidity risk and how to provide the communication of policies and
implementations with board of directors and business lines

The Bank’s liquidity and funding policy is to own sufficient liquidity reserve and funding opportunities to meet
Bank’s liabilities even in cases of stress, resulting from the market conditions or other conditions specific to the
Bank. The Bank has capacity to meet a high risk with broad and stable deposit, strong base capital structure and
diversified foreign borrowing sources and is capable of providing additional liquidity with high quality liquid
securities in its portfolio and available limits at both the Central Bank of Tiirkiye and other money markets.
Management of liquidity risk is shared by the ERC, ALCO, Treasury Department and Risk Management
Department. The ERC determines the liquidity management policies and the appropriate liquidity risk level in
line with the Bank’s risk appetite and monitors whether the liquidity risk is managed under the framework of
determined policies and within the defined limits. The Bank's liquidity is discussed at weekly ALCO meetings
and reported to the Board of Directors through monthly risk assessment reports. Excesses are monitored by the
Risk Management Department through the liquidity risk appetite, limit and early warning values determined by
the Bank's Board of Directors, and necessary notifications are made to the relevant management levels.

In accordance with the fifth paragraph of Article 4 of the Regulation on Banks' Liquidity Coverage Ratio, it has
been decided to apply the consolidated and unconsolidated total and foreign currency liquidity coverage ratios
for development and investment banks as zero percent until the contrary is determined by the BRSA, and in this
context, compliance with the legal ratio is not determined accordingly.

Liquidity management and the degree of centralization of fund strategies, the information about the
procedure between bank and the partners of Bank

None.
Explanation related to policies regarding fund resources times variations of funding strategy of Bank

Since the Bank has considered as an “Investment bank”, its funding sources are limited to non-deposits, and the
Bank's primary goal is to diversify its funding sources over time. Accordingly, both expanding the investor base
and diversifying the borrowing markets have been determined as priorities. The Bank's funding source consists
of loans from other financial institutions and borrowings from the interbank money market. In particular,
relatively long-term funding opportunities from foreign banks and borrowing opportunities from organized
markets can also be used.

Explanation related to liquidity management as currencies forming at least 5 percentage of aggregate
liabilities of the Bank

Liquidity management denominated in foreign currencies is ensured by harmonizing and diversifying the Bank's
domestic funding resources in terms of currency, passive cost and maturity of the resources under the
management of the Treasury Department, and foreign funding opportunities in coordination with the Treasury
Department and the Financial Institutions Group.

Information related to the techniques about the reduction of current liquidity risk

In order to satisfy possible cash outflows, the Bank will establish a liquidity buffer in accordance with its internal
liquidity target and monitor the relevant data on a daily basis. In order to mitigate risk, it is required to diversify
resources, adverse the possible concentration in payment dates, and observe asset-liability mgiu d possible
mismatch.
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INFORMATION RELATED TO FINANCIAL POSITION AND RISK MANAGEMENT OF THE BANK (continued)

2)

h)

VI. Explanations on ligiudity risk management and ligiudity coverage ratio (continued)
Explanation regarding stress test

Conducting measurement, monitoring, limitation, stress testing and scenario analysis are compatible with the
structure and complexity of positions regarding liquidity risk management and reporting these operations to the
Board of Directors is stipulated by the Risk Management Procedure.

General information on liquidity urgent and unexpected situation plan

In cases where there is a risk that the Bank’s liquid assets will decrease to a level where it cannot satisfy short-
term liabilities and will make it difficult for the Bank to continue its operating activities and banking operations,
in order to be prepared for a financial emergency in order to manage the liquidity matters it may encounter as
much as possible and to protect the Bank's assets and reputation. The necessary actions that can be implemented
are determined by the Liquidity Emergency Action Plan (“LEAP”) that are approved from Board of Directors.

Liquidity coverage ratio

In accordance with the “Regulation on Measurement and Evaluation of Liquidity Adequacy of Banks™ entered
into force after published on Official Gazette dated | November 2006 and numbered 26333 published by BRSA,
starting from 1 June 2007, weekly simple average of total liquidity adequacy rates related to primary maturity
segment and total liquidity adequacy rate related to secondary maturity segment cannot be less than 100% while
weekly simple average of foreign currency liquidity ratio related to primary maturity segment and foreign
currency adequacy rate related to secondary maturity segment cannot be less than 80%.

Liquidity coverage ratio is calculated by dividing high-quality liquid assets (*"HQLA™) to net cash outflows
within a one-month maturity.
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INFORMATION RELATED TO FINANCIAL POSITION AND RISK MANAGEMENT OF THE BANK (continued)

VI. Explanations on ligiudity risk management and ligiudity coverage ratio (continued)

Breakdown of assets and liabilities according to their outstanding maturities

Uptol 1-3 3-12 15 viurs 5 years
31 Marech 2025 Demand " month months months 2y and over  Undistributed % Total
Assets
Cash (cash on hand, elfectives, cash 612.629 846,209 - - - - - 1.458.838

in transit. cheques purchased) and

balances with the Central Bank of

the Republic of Tiirkiye

Banks 103.089 136.254 = - - - - 239,343
Financial assets at fair value - - - - - - =

through profit or loss

Reccivables from money market - 1.256.388 - - - - 1.256.388
Financial assets at fair value - - 66.615 - 1415345 92461 1.574.421
through other comprehensive

income

Loans - 6.075.397  2.339488 6.767.657 - - - 15.182.542

Financial assets measured at - - - = = = -
amortized cost

Other assets = - - = - - 1.858.810 1.858.810
Total assets 715.718 8.314.248  2.406.103  6.767.657 1.415.345 92.461 1.858.810 21.570.342
Liabilities

Bank deposits - - - - S - - P
Other deposits - = "

Other funds - - 1.298.235 5.299.918 - - - 6.598.153
Funds from money market - 1.537.720 - - - - - 1.537.720
Issued securities - - - 4353311 303796  382.882 - 5.129.989
Miscellaneous payables 413.044 - . - - - - 413.044
Other liabilities 1.032.553 2.576.635 73.608 4.208.640 7.801.436
Total liabilities 1.445.597 4.114.355 1.371.843 9.653.229 393.796  382.882 4.208.640 21.570.342
Liguidity gap (729.879) 4.199.893 1.034.260 (2.885.572) 1.021.549  (290.421) (2.349.830) -
31 December 2024

Total assets 282.930 7.314.209 1.868.509 4,847,020 1.029.400 88.735 1.094.461 16.525.284
Total labilities 1.032.5353 3.11.579 1.313.329 1.264.622 4.145.580 - 1.658.621 16.525.284

(' Cash on hand, bank deposits, prepaid expenses except for miseellancous receivables, miscellaneous payables, demand funds and
temporary accounts are stated in demand column.

22 Pproperty, plant and equipment, intangible assets and other asset are stated in undistributed column. Provisions, current period tax
expense, deferred tax liabilities and equity are stated in undistributed column.

%) Property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and other assets are presented in other assets.

) Derivative financial liabilities, provisions, funds current period tax expense, deferred tax liabilities and equity are presented in other
liabilities.

) Derivative financial liabilities, provisions, funds current period tax expense, deferred tax liabilities and equity are presented in other
liabilities.

%) Includes bonds issued presented in subordinated loans presented under subordinated loans item in the balance sheet.
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INFORMATION RELATED TO FINANCIAL POSITION AND RISK MANAGEMENT OF THE BANK (continued)

VIL Explanations on leverage ratio

As of 31 March 2025, the leverage ratio of the Bank is calculated as 7.95%. This ratio is above the minimum
ratio which is 3%.

Current period Prior period

31 March 2025" 31 December 2024V

Balance sheet assets

| Balance sheet assets (excluding derivative financial assets and credit

derivatives, including collaterals) 18.645.562 14.782.289
2 Assets deducted from Core capital (166.522) (120.456)
3 Total risk amount of balance sheet assets (sum of lines 1 and 2) 18.479.040 14.661.863

Derivative financial assets and credit derivatives
4 Cost of replenishment for derivative financial assets and credit derivatives -

5 Pl.:wten.tlal credit risk amount of derivative financial assets and credit 718 281 710.121
derivatives

6 Total risk amount of derivative financial assets and credit derivatives (sum

of lines 4 and 5) 718.281 710.121

Financing transactions secured by marketable security or commodity

7 Risk amount of financing transactions secured by marketable security or

commodity 970.983 746.895
8 Risk amount arising from intermediary transactions - -
9 Total risk amount of financing transactions secured by marketable security

or commodity (sum of lines 7 and 8) 970.983 746.895
Off-balance sheet transactions

10 Gross nominal amount of off-balance sheet transactions 18.127.583 18.224.048
11 (Correction amount due to multiplication with credit conversion rates) - -
12 Total risk of off-balance sheet transactions (sum of lines 10 and 11) 18.127.583 18.224.048
Capital and total risk

13 Capital 3.043.933 2.566.392
14 Total risk amount (sum of lines 3, 6. 9 and 12) 38.295.887 34.342.927
Leverage ratio

15 Leverage ratio 7.95 7.47

M (¢ aylik ortalama tutarlardir,
VIII. Transactions carried out on behalf of customers, items held in trust
None.
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INFORMATION RELATED TO FINANCIAL POSITION AND RISK MANAGEMENT OF THE BANK (continued)

IX. Explanations on risk management

The notes and related explanations prepared in accordance with the “Communiqué Regarding Risk Management
by Banks™ published in the Official Gazette numbered 29511 on 23 October 2015 are as follows:

a) Risk management approach and weighted risk amounts
1. The Bank’s Risk Management Approach

The Bank’s risk management approach includes establishing a healthy risk management system,
including human resources, information technology infrastructure, risk assessment models, regulations,
procedures, application instructions and reports, and fulfilling all requirements for its operation, creating
an integrated risk management based on risk and return. Accordingly, the Bank ensures relevant policies,
procedures and sets limits, and risk management activities are established and defined in accordance
with internal and external legislation. The Bank has established the system and infrastructure for the
measurement and management of the risks it is exposed to in accordance with its risk profile and
operating environment. Duties, authorities and responsibilities within the scope of the risk management
system are fulfilled and satisfied in accordance with the legislation and internal procedures.

The Board of Directors of the Bank has sole responsibility to establish the risk management system and
monitor its effectiveness. The Board of Directors realises its oversight responsibility through the Audit
Committee and other relevant committees.

The operating activities of the Bank should be carried out in a manner that does not exceed the internal
and legal capital limits and the risk appetite limits determined by the Board of Directors. Risk
governance model includes three lines of defense consisting of: The risk-taking units at the first level,
responsible for assessing and minimizing risks for a given level of return (level 1). Risk Management
Unit, at the second level, identifies, monitors, controls, quantifies risk, provides appropriate tools and
methodologies, provides coordination and assistance; measures risk adjusted performance across the
business lines; reports to appropriate levels and proposes mitigation measures, being supported by
business lines, where the risk is actually created, and specialized units (level 2). Internal Audit — provides
the independent review function (level 3).

“Risk appetite” is a high-level determination of how much risk a bank is willing to accept taking into
account the risk/return attributes.

The Bank applies audit and control mechanisms to determine that processes are carried out in accordance
with the Bank's policies and procedures, within the procedures and principles determined by the Board
of Directors, and are reported in a correct manner to the key management personnel.

Operating activities implemented within internal systems are used as instruments to identify weaknesses
in risk management processes, policies and procedures and to detect transactions that are contrary to the
limits, policies and procedures. Thus, the “Internal Audit Department”, “Internal Control Department™
and “Risk Management Department”, which operate directly under the Board of Directors, continue
their activities in coordination with other departments and key management personnel.

In accordance with the risk management activities of the Bank, the evaluations regarding risk
management are realised on a monthly basis to identify, measure and manage risks and the results are
submitted to the Board of Directors.
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INFORMATION RELATED TO FINANCIAL POSITION AND RISK MANAGEMENT OF THE BANK
(continued)

IX. Explanations on risk management (continued)

a) Risk management approach and weighted risk amounts (continued)

2) Overview of risk weighted assets

Minimum Minimum
Capital Capital
- Risk-Weighted Assets Requirements  Requirements
Current  Prior period Current  Prior period
period period
1 Credit risk (excluding counterparty credit risk) (CCR) 12.782.108 8.797.938 1.022.569 703,835
8,797,938 1.022.569 T03.835

2 Standardized approach (5A) 12.782.108

3 Internal rating-based (IRB) approach - - - -

4 Counterparty credit risk 316.854 312.120 25.348 24970

5 Standardized approach for counterparty credit risk (SACCR) 316.854 312.120 25.348 24.970

6 Internal model method (IMM) - - - -

7 Basic risk weight approach to internal models' equity position in the banking account E -

& Investments made in collective investment companies — look-through approach - - -

9  Investments made in collective investment companies —mandate-based approach - - -
10 Investments made in collective investment companies — 1250% weighted risk approach - - - -
11 Settlement risk . - - -
12 Securitization positions in banking accounts - - - -
13 IRB ratings-hased approach (RBA) - -
14 IRB Supervisory Formula Approach (SFA) - - - -
15 SA/simplified supervisory formula approach (SSFA) - - - -
16  Market risk 309363 596.475 24.749 47.718
17 Standardized approach (SA) 309,363 596475 24.749 47,718
18 Internal model approaches (IMM) - - - -
19 Operational risk 2.307.423 1.505.071 184.594 120.406

1.505.071 184.594 120.406
20 Basic indicator approach 2.307.423
21 Standard approach - -
22 Advanced measurement approach . - - -
23 The amount of the discount threshold under the equity (subject to a 250% risk weight) - - - -
24  Floor adjustment - - -
25 Total (1+4+7+8+9+10+11+12+16+19+23+24) 15.715.748 15.715.748 1.257.260 896.929

Explanations on counterparty credit risk (“CCR™)

Qualitative disclosures regarding counterparty credit risk

The counterparty credit risk is defined as the risk that the counterparty, which is the other party of a transaction
that has obligations on both parties, will default before the final payment in the cash flow of the relevant
transaction.

Counterparty credit risk arises when financing securities transactions such as over-the-counter derivative
financial instruments and reverse repos. The Bank monitors the counterparty credit risk considering the
application of limits approved by the Board of Directors on an institution/organization basis.

Capital requirement is calculated for the counterparty credit risk arising from the transactions included in the
accounts which are as follows:

e Over-the-counter derivative financial instruments and credit derivatives,

e Securities or commodity-based securities or commodity borrowings or lending transactions
included in the portfolio, and repo and reverse repurchase agreements,

¢ Securities transactions on credit and transactions with long settlement perio
Replenishment costs are measured and managed using yield curves whose current valu eflects

conditions.
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INFORMATION RELATED TO FINANCIAL POSITION AND RISK MANAGEMENT OF THE BANK (continued)

X. Explanations on securitisation
None.
Explanations on market risk
1, Qualitative disclosure requirements related to market risk

The Bank is exposed to market risk as a result of fluctuations in foreign exchange rates, commodity risk, interest
rates, and market prices of stocks. The risk is defined as the possibility of loss that the bank’s on-balance sheet
and off-balance sheet positions within the framework of financial risk management. The Bank aims to keep the
foreign exchange position balanced and minimize liquidity and interest rate risks in order to hedge against risks
that may occur in the markets. The amount subject to market risk is calculated on a monthly basis in accordance
with the “Standard Method” and is included in the capital adequacy standard ratio calculation. The Board of
Directors considers the necessary measures to maintain an effective internal control mechanism and risk
management system within the Bank and closely monitors the development of market risk.

The Bank's policies regarding market risk management are determined by Treasury and Risk Management. The
Bank determines as its priority that the risks faced by the Bank are within the limits required by the legislation
and proportional to the Bank's risk appetite. The Bank's risk appetite is determined by the Board of Directors.
The Bank has internal “risk limits” determined according to its portfolio structure and risk appetite, and
compliance with these limits is monitored by controllers determined according to the triple mechanism.

The market risk within the Bank is calculated within the framework of “Regulation on Banks' Equity” and
“Regulation on Measurement and Evaluation of Capital Adequacy of Banks™ under “Standard Method™.

Market risk under standardised approach

Current period Prior period
RWA RWA

Outright products
1 Interest rate risk (general and specific) 284.988 367.888
2 Equity risk (general and specific) . -
3 Foreign exchange risk 24.375 228.587
4 Commodity risk . -

Options

5  Simplified approach = =
6 Delta-plus method - E
7  Scenario approach - .
8 Securitisation . =
Total 309.363 596.475

XIII. Explanations on operating segments

The Bank has operating activities in “Commercial and Corporate Banking”, “Treasury” and “Financial
Institutions and Investment Banking™ (Other).

In accordance with the commercial/corporate banking activities, Destek Yatirim Bankasi is providing non-cash
loans to institutions and organizations operating in all economic sectors through commercial, investment and
retail banking, opening letters of credit, financing sectors with national and international bankmg methods,
advising domestic and foreign capital to invest in Tiirkiye. The Bank has the authority to o nestic
and international capital and money markets, including in precious metal and metal excha es eﬁ& Pates as
an insurance agency.
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The Bank has forward foreign exchange transactions, derivative transactions and securities transactions under
its treasury operations. The Bank has operational structure on the customer basis in order to satisfy the wide

variety of financial requirements of its customers.
INFORMATION RELATED TO FINANCIAL POSITION AND RISK MANAGEMENT OF THE BANK (continued)

XIII. Explanations on operating segments (continued)

Retail Total

banking  Treasury Other  operations
Current period - 31 March 2025
Interest income 819.318 159.325 3573 982.216
Interest expenses - 269.180 76.149 345.329
Net interest income 819318 (109.855) (72.576) 636.887
Net fees and commissions income 15.497 (1.842) 371 14.026
Commission income 18,148 4.420 371 22.939
Commission expenses 2.651 6.262 - (8.913)
Dividend income B - - -
Trading income/(losses) (Net) - (83.605) - (83.605)
Other operating income - 38.668 38.068
Total operating income 834.815 (195.302) (33.537) 605.976
Provision for loans - - 61.358 61.358
Other operating expenses (¥) - - 127.466 127.466
Profit before tax 834.815 (195.302) (222.361) 417.152
Provision for taxes - - 164.252 164.252
Net profit for the period 834.815 (195.302) (386.613) 252.900
Segment assets 15.182.542 4.853.944 1.233.856  21.270.342
Subsidiaries and associates - - 300.000 300.000
Undistributed assets - - - -
Total assets —31 March 2025 15.182.542 4.853.944 1.533.856 21.570.342
Segment liabilities 3.966.219  13.387.361 1.245.554  18.599.134
Undistributed liabilities 5 = - -
Equity - - 2.971.208 2.971.208
Total liabilities — 31 March 2025 3.966.219 13.387.361 4.216.762 21.570.342
(*) Other operating expenses include personnel expenses.

Retail Total

banking Treasury Other  operations
Prior period - 31 March 2024
Interest income 163.241 143.727 - 306.968
Interest expenses - (77.861) (35.687) (113.548)
Net interest income 163.421 65.866 (35.687) 193.420
Net fees and commissions income 5.429 (1.726) 29 3.732
Dividend income - - - -
Trading income/(losses) (Net) - 432,181 - 432,181
Other operating income - - 1.668 1.668
Total operating income 168.670 496.321 (33.990) 631.001
Provision for loans - - (67.452) (67.452)
Other operating expenses (*) - - (65.870) (65.870)
Profit before tax 168.670 496.321 (167.312) 467.679
Provision for taxes - - (157.208) (157.208)
Net profit for the period 168.670 496.321 (324.520) 340.471
Segment assets 12.132.895 3.587.831 504.558 16.225.284
Subsidiaries and associates B - 300.000 300,000
Undistributed assets % - s =
Total assets — 31 December 2024 12.132.895 3.587.831 804.558 16.525.284
Segment liabilities 2.953.813 0.842 846
Undistributed liabilities - -
Equity - -
Total liabilities — 31 December 2024 2.953.813 9.842.846

(*) Other operating expenses include personnel expenses.
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SECTION FIVE

INFORMATION AND DISCLOSURES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

I Explanations and notes related to assets

1. Information related to cash and cash equivalents and the account of the Central Bank of the Republic of
Tiirkiye (the “CBRT”)

1.1. Cash and cash equivalents and the CBRT

31 March 2025 31 December 2024

FL: ) FC TL FC

Cash - 516.936 58 33.815
The CBRT 1.257 846.227 2.798 469.815
Other - 94.418 - 63.553
Total 1.257 1.457.581 2.856 567.183

1.2. Information related to the account of the CBRT

31 March 2025 31 December 2024

TL FC TL FC

Unrestricted Demand Deposits 1257 18 2.798 17
Unrestricted Time Deposits B - - -
Reserve Requirement - 846.209 - 469.798
Total 1.257 846.227 2.798 469.815

1.3. Information related to the reserve requirement

The Bank established in Tiirkiye or operating in Tiirkiye by opening branches are subject to the “Communiqué
Regarding Required Provisions numbered 2013/15™ of the Central Bank of Tiirkiye. The amount to be
calculated as a result of deducting the deductible items specified in the aforementioned communiqué from the
total domestic liabilities of the banks and the deposits/borrower funds from Tiirkiye on behalf of their branches
abroad constitute their liabilities subject to reserve requirements.

As of 31 March 2025 and 31 December 2024, the required reserve rates for liabilities denominated in TL is
between 3% and 8% according to their maturities and the reserve rates for foreign currency denominated
liabilities are between 5% and 25% for deposit and other foreign currency liabilities according to their
maturities,

2. Information on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss given or blocked as collateral

None.
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INFORMATION AND DISCLOSURES
STATEMENTS (continued)

RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

| Explanations and notes related to assets (continued)

3. Information on derivative financial assets

31 March 2025 31 December 2024

TL FC TL FC
Forward transactions 284.140 2 287.448 -
Swap transactions 21.643 19.171 - 2.455
Futures transactions - - . -
Options - - - -
Other - = . -
Total 305.783 19.171 287.448 2.455

4. Information on banks and other financial institutions

31 March 2025 31 December 2024

TL FC TL FC

Banks 95.604 143.739 771.110 200.056
Domestic 95.604 18 770.097 21
Foreign - 143.721 1.013 200.035
Foreign head office and branches - - - -
Total 95.604 143.739 771.110 200.056
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INFORMATION AND DISCLOSURES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (continued)
L Explanations and notes related to assets (continued)

5. Information on financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

5.1. Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

31 March 2025 | December 2024
TL FC TL FC
Debt Securities 1.481.960 92.461 1.067.167 88.756
Quoted at Stock Exchange 1.481.960 92.461 1.067.167 88.756
Unquoted at Stock Exchange - - . -
Common Shares/Equity Securities - - - -
Quoted at Stock Exchange - - - -
Unquoted at Stock Exchange - - . -
Impairment (-) - - - -
Total 1.481.960 92.461 1.067.167 88.756
5.2. Financial assets subject to repurchase agreements and provided as collateral/blocked
31 March 2025 31 December 2024
TL FC TL FC
Repurchase agreements 781.453 37.921 93.493 88.756
Collateralised/blocked 511.082 54.540 497.839 -
Total 1.292.535 92.461 591.332 88.756

6. Information on loans

6.1. Looans and advances to shareholders and employees of the Bank

31 March 2025 31 December 2024

Cash loans Non-cash  Cash loans Non-cash

loans loans

Direct lending to shareholders 7.715.488 4.092 7.635.355 4.054

Legal entity 7.715.488 4.092 7.635.355 4.054

Natural person - - - -

Indirect lending to shareholders - - - -

Loans to employees - - - -
Total 7.715.488 4.092
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INFORMATION AND DISCLOSURES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (continued)

| Explanations and notes related to assets (continued)

6. Information on loans (continued)

6.2. Information on the first and second loans and other receivables including loans that have been

restructured or rescheduled

Current period

Loans and other receivables under follow-up

Restructured Loans and

Receivables

Loans and

Standard Loans and Receivables

Loans Receivables Not  with Revised

and Other Subject to Contract
Receivables restructuring Terms Refinance
Non-specialized loans 15.182.542 - - -
Loans given to enterprises 106.627 - - =
Export loans - - - -
Import loans - - - =
Loans given to financial sector 11.075.148 - - -

Consumer loans

Credit cards

Other
Specialized loans
Qther receivables

4.000.767

Total 15.182.542 - - -
Prior period
Loans and other receivables under follow-up
Restructured Loans and
Receivables
Loans and
Standard Loans and Receivables
Loans Receivables Not  with Revised
and Other Subject to Contract
- Receivables restructuring Terms Refinance
Non-specialized loans 12.132.895 - - -
Loans given o enterprises - - E -
Export loans - - - -
Import loans - - - -
Loans given to financial sector 10.047.167 - - -
Consumer loans - - - e R,
Credit cards - = . ff s b d! p
Other 2.085.728 - -f 3 ﬂ.;;;;; .
Specialized loans - - - { g {(Lﬁ, A
Other receivables - - -4 =2 A\ .
Total 12.132.895 o . N T
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INFORMATION AND DISCLOSURES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

I. Explanations and notes related to assets (continued)
6. Information on loans (continued)

6.2. Information on the first and second loans and other receivables including loans that have been
restructured or rescheduled (continued)

Curent period Prior period
Loans Under Standard  Loans Under
B standard Loans Follow-up Loans Follow-up
General Loan Loss Provisions 316.885 - 255.527 -
12-Month Expected Credit Losses - - - -
Significant Increase in Credit Risk - . - -
Total 316.885 - 255.527 -

Changes in number of extensions on loans
None.

Changes in period of extension on loans
None.

6.3. Maturity analysis of cash loans

Loans and other receivables under follow-up

Standard Loans

loans Loans not subject to restructuring restructured

Short-term loans 15.128.327 - -

Medium and long-term loans 54.215 - -

Total 15.182.542 - -
Prior period Loans and other receivables under follow-up

Standard Loans

loans Loans not subject to restructuring  restructured

Short-term loans 12.085.031 - -
Medium and long-term loans 47.864 - .
Total 12.132.895 - -

6.4. Information on consumer loans, personal credit cards, personnel loans and personnel crediteards

None.
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INFORMATION AND DISCLOSURES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

I Explanations and notes related to assets (continued)

6. Information on loans (continued)

6.5. Information on commercial installment loans and corporate credit cards

Short-term  Medium and long-term Total

31 March 2025

Assets

Commercial Loans with Installment (TL) - “
Business loan -
Vehicle loan =
Consumer loan =
Other - - .
Commercial Loans with Installment (Indexed to foreign
currency)

Business loan -
Vehicle loan -
Consumer loan
Other - s -
Commercial Loans with Installment (FC) -
Business loan =
Vehicle loan
Consumer loan
Other assets
Total Assets 2 -

Short-term Medium and long-term Total

31 December 2024

Assets

Commercial Loans with Installment (TL) - -
Business loan
Vehicle loan
Consumer loan
Other - 5 =
Commercial Loans with Installment (Indexed to foreign

currency) -
Business loan
Vehicle loan 5
Consumer loan
Other . . :
Commercial Loans with Installment (FC) - =

Business loan
Vehicle loan .
Consumer loan
Other assets 2
Total Assets s .
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INTERIM PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2025
(Amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise indicated.)

INFORMATION AND DISCLOSURES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Explanations and notes related to assets (continued)

6. Information on loans (continued)

6.6.

6.7.

6.8.

6.9.

6.10.

6.11.

Loans according to types of borrowers

31 March 2025 31 December 2024

Public - -
Private 15.182.542 12.132.895
Total 15.182.542 12.132.895

Distribution of domestic and foreign loans

- ) 31 March 2025 31 December 2024
Domestic Loans 15.182.542 12.132.895

Foreign Loans -

Total 15.182.542 12.132.895

Loans to associates and subsidiaries

None.

Specific provisions or default accounted for loans (Stage 3)

None.

Information on non-performing loans and restructured receivables
None.

Information on total non-performing loans

None.

Information on non-performing loans denominated in foreign currencies

None.

Loan customer concentration of gross and net amounts of non-performing loans
None.

Information on financial assets at amortized cost

None.

Information on investments in associates (Net)

None.
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INTERIM PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2025
{Amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL") unless otherwise indicated.)

INFORMATION AND DISCLOSURES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Explanations and notes related to assets (continued)

Information on investments in subsidiaries

Subsidiary Country of Effective ownership interest held Effective ownership interest
incorporation by Destek Yatinm Bankasi- held by other shareholders
(City) Voting rights (%)
Destek Yatinim Menkul Degerler A S.* fstanbul/Tarkiye 100 2

* [ accordance with the decision of the “Extraordinary General Assembly™ on 27 September 2024, the title of Destek Menkul Degerler
Anonim Sirketi was changed to “Destek Yatirim Menkul Degerler Anonim §irketi™,

Subsidiary Total assets Equity Current period profit Prior period profit

Destek Yaunm Menkul Degerler ALS, 339613 300.000 2.538 25441

31 March 2025 31 December 2024

Banks = .
Insurance companies - 2
Leasing companies i -

Financing companies = .
Other subsidiaries 300.000 300.000

Total 300.000 300.000

Information on investments in joint ventures
None.

Information on finance lease receivables (net)
None.

Information on property, plant and equipment

The relevant information has not been prepared in accordance with Article 25 of the Communiqué on Financial
Statements to be Disclosed to the Public by Banks and Related Disclosures and Notes.
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17.
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DESTEK YATIRIM BANKASI ANONIM SIRKETI

NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS OF AND FOR THE

INTERIM PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2025
(Amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise indicated.)

INFORMATION AND DISCLOSURES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

L. Explanations and notes related to assets (continued)
13. Information on intangible assets

The relevant information has not been prepared in accordance with Article 25 of the Communiqué on Financial
Statements to be Disclosed to the Public by Banks and Related Disclosures and Notes.

Information on investment properties
None.

Information on tax assets

Information on current period tax assets

None.

Information on the amount of deferred tax assets in the balance sheet, including deductible temporary
differences, tax losses and tax deductions and exemptions

None.

Information on non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations
None.

Information on other assets

If other assets account exceeds 10% of total assets excluding the commitments included in the off-
balance sheet items, information given about components of other assets account that exceeds 20% of
the individual asset item in the unconsolidated balance sheet

Other assets do not exceed 10% of total assets of the balance sheet.
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DESTEK YATIRIM BANKASI ANONIM SiRKETi

NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS OF AND FOR THE
INTERIM PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2025
(Amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (*TL”) unless otherwise indicated.)

INFORMATION AND DISCLOSURES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Explanations and notes related to liabilities

The disclosures and relevant notes regarding the liability of the unconsolidated balance sheet prepared by the
Bank are as follows.

Information on deposits
Since the Bank was established as an “Investment Bank™, the Bank has no deposits or collected funds.
Derivative financial liabilities

2.1.  Table for negative differences for the portion of derivative financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss

31 March 2025 31 December 2024
TL FC TL FC
Forward transactions 87.672 = 37.918 =
Swap transactions 9.611 24.216 6.255 1.069
Futures transactions - - - -
Options - - - -
Other = - - -
Total 97.283 24.216 44.173 1.069
Information due to money market
31 March 2025 31 December 2024
TL FC TL FC
Domestic transactions 1.502.969 34.747 4.273 169.937
Financial institutions 1.498.385 150 = =
Other institutions 2.461 18.160 1.622 02.948
Natural person 2.123 16.437 2.651 76.989
Foreign transactions 4 - - 3.904
Financial institutions = = = -
Other institutions 4 = - 3,904
Natural person - u 2 =
Total 1.502.973 34.747 4.273 173.841

@
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INTERIM PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

(Amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise indicated.)

INFORMATION AND DISCLOSURES

STATEMENTS (continued)

IL. Explanations and notes related to liabilities (continued)

4. Information on banks and other financial institutions

Borrowings from banks and other financial institutions

RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

31 March 2025

31 December 2024

TL FC TL FC

The CBRT = - - .
Domestic bank and institutions - = E =
Foreign bank, institutions and funds - 6.598.153 - 5.047.682
Total - 6.598.153 - 5.047.682

Maturity analysis of borrowings

31 March 2025 31 December 2024

TL FC TL FC
Short-term - 1.258.166 - 1.225.695
Medium and long-term - 5.339.987 - 3.821.987
Total - 6.598.153 - 5.047.682

Information on securities issued (net)

31 March 2025

31 December 2024

TL FC TL FC
Bank bonds 431,893 = 253.828 -
Bonds and bills 402.480 3.912.734 129.155  4.188.825
Total 834.373 3.912.734 382.983  4.188.825

Information on borrower funds

31 March 2025

31 December 2024

TL FC TL FC
Domestic bank and institutions 452.086 2.254.833 518.575 1.954.766
Foreign bank, institutions and funds 864 1.258.436 5.166 475.306
Total 452.950 3.513.269 523.741 2.430.072

If other liabilities account exceeds 10% of total assets excluding the commitments included M off-
balance sheet items, information given about components of other liabilities account th exgé‘@sé@%
of the individual liabilities item in the unconsolidated balance sheet

As of 31 March 2025 and 31 December 2024, other liabilities do not exceed 10% of tot l l:abl &sjo{‘&hﬁ‘.‘
balance sheet excluding the off-balance sheet items. n., ’en‘&/ £ ;

£
14
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS OF AND FOR THE

INTERIM PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2025

(Amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL") unless otherwise indicated. )

In accordance with the BRSA Circular No. 24049440.010.06.02[5/1]-1 dated 2 February 2015, other liabilities
include “transfer” account balances in foreign exchange buying/selling and transfer transactions whose transfer

was not completed on 31 March 2025.

INFORMATION AND DISCLOSURES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

IL. Explanations and notes related to liabilities (continued)
6. Information on lease liabilities (net)
In accordance with “TFRS 16 Leases”™ effective from 1 January 2019, the difference between operating leases
and finance leases has been eliminated and the lease transactions have been disclosed under the “Lease
liabilities” as liability by lessees. As of 31 March 2025, the breakdown of the leases and relevant transactions
with lease agreement 1 year and over is as follows:
31 March 2025 31 December 2024
Upto 1 year 2.348 1.267
1-4 years 31.557 20.371
4 years and over - B
Total 33.905 21.638
7 Information on hedging derivative financial instruments
None.
8.  Information on provisions
8.1 General loan provisions
In accordance with the authorisation on 21 February 2022 from BRSA, the Bank calculates its general loan
provisions within the scope of the 10th, 11th, 13th and 15th articles of the regulation, not with the expected
credit losses under TFRS 9. As of 31 March 2025, the Bank calculated general loan provisions amounting to
TL 316.885 for its first group loans and receivables (31 December 2024: TL 255.527).
.2.  Provision for currency exchange gains/(losses) on foreign currency indexed loans and finance lease
receivables
None.
8.3. Information on provision for employee rights

According to Turkish Labor Law, the Bank is required to pay termination benefits to each employee who has
completed at least one year of service and whose employment is terminated without due cause, is called up for
military service, dies or who retires. The compensation amount equals to one month’s salary of an employee
for each year of service, but this amount is limited up to employment termination limit decided by law. The
reserve has been calculated by estimating the present value of the future probable obligation of the Bank arising
from the retirement of its employees. Accordingly, the following actuarial assumptions were used in the
calculation of the total liability:

31 March 2025 31 December 2024
Provision for employment termination benefits 2.788 2.522

Provision for unused vacation 10.815 5.077
Provision for bonuses -
Provision for premiums and dividends -

Total 13.603
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NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS OF AND FOR THE

INTERIM PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2025
(Amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise indicated. )

INFORMATION AND DISCLOSURES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (continued)
1L Explanations and notes related to liabilities (continued)
Information on provisions (continued)

Information on other provisions

31 March 2025

31 December 2024

Impairment of spot transactions -
Provision for expense accruals 4.954

3.088

Total 4,954

3.088

Information on current period tax expenses

Information on provision for taxes

As of 31 March 2023, after deducting the advance taxes paid during the period from the corporate tax, the
remaining corporate tax payable is amounting to TL 135.576 (31 December 2024: TL 170.546).

Information on taxes payable

31 March 2025

31 December 2024

Corporate tax payable 135.576 170.546
Securities income tax 3.536 3.011
Property income tax = 5
Banking and insurance transaction tax 24.989 26.889
Foreign exchange transactions tax 345 186
VAT payable 761 758
Other 176.623 4.011
Total 341.830 205.401

(1) Other includes, the amount of TL 170.546 is the corporate tax payable for the year 2024, the amount of TL 5.730 is the income tax
deducted from personnel expenses (31 December 2024: TL 3.877), the amount of TL 159 is the stamp duty deducted from the
allowances (31 December 2024: 91 TL), the amount of TL 39 is the income tax to be paid (31 December 2024: TL 40), and the

amount of TL 143 consists of other (31 December 2024: TL 3).
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(Amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise indicated.)

INFORMATION AND DISCLOSURES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (continued)

IL Explanations and notes related to liabilities (continued)
9, Information on current period tax expenses (continued)
9.3. Information on premium
31 March 2025 31 December 2024
Social Security Premiums — Employee - -
Social Security Premiums — Employer 7.876 3.245
Bank Social Aid Pension Fund Premium- Employee - -
Bank Social Aid Pension Fund Premium — Employer - -
Pension Fund Membership Fees and Provisions - Employee . -
Pension Fund Membership Fees and Provisions - Employer - -
Unemployment Insurance — Employee - -
Unemployment Insurance — Employer 512 232
Other . -
Total 8.388 3.477
9.4. Information on deferred tax
9.4.1. Information on deferred tax liabilities reflected in the unconsolidated balance sheet, as of deductible
temporary differences, tax losses and tax deductions and allowances:
The Bank has calculated deferred tax assets based on the differences arising from “temporary differences”
between the accounting policies and valuation principles applied in the financial statements and the tax
legislation and reflected the deferred tax assets in the accompanying financial statements accordingly. As of
31 March 2025, the Bank has deferred tax liabilities amounting to TL 58.523 (31 December 2024: TL 57.157).
31 March 2025 31 December 2024
Deferred
Cumulative Deferred tax Cumulative tax
temporary assets temporary assets/(liabilities
differences /(liahilities) differences )
Uneamed revenue 8.682 2.605 6.487 1.946
Provision for employee benefits 13.603 4.081 7.599 2.280
Discount on derivative transations 121.499 36.449 45.241 13.572
Valuation of TAS 16 1.430 429 2.131 639
Property, plant and equipment and 80 24 55.202 16.561
intangible assets
Other 4.954 1.486 3.088 026
Total deferred tax assets 150.248 45.074 119.748 35.924
Discount on forward transactions (324.954) (97.487) (289.902) (86.971)
Depreciation and amortisation charges (20.548) (6.110) (20.548) (6.110)
Other = - - i
Total deferred tax liabilities (345.502) (103.597) (310.450) (93.081)
“Deferred tax assets/(liabilities), net (195.254) (58.523) (190.702) 7Y+
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CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION OF THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH

DESTEK YATIRIM BANKASI ANONIM SiRKETI

NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS OF AND FOR THE

INTERIM PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2025
(Amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL") unless otherwise indicated.)

INFORMATION AND DISCLOSURES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

1L Explanations and notes related to liabilities (continued)

Information on deferred tax (continued)

Information on liabilities from non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations
None.

Information on subordinated loans

31 March 31 December

2025 2024
To be included in the calculation of additional capital borrowing
; 382.882 -
instruments
Subordinated loans 5 3
Subordinated debt instruments 382.882 -
Debt instruments to be included in contribution capital calculation - -
Subordinated loans - =
Subordinated debt instruments - -
Total 382.882 -

Information on shareholders’ equity

Presentation of paid-in share capital

31 March 2025 31 December 2024
Common Stock 600.000 600.000

Amount of paid-in share capital, explanations as to whether the registered share capital system is
applied, if so the amount of registered share capital ceiling

As of 31 March 2025 and 31 December 2024, the Bank has not adopted registered capital system.

Capital increases and sources in the current period and other information based on increased capital
shares

None (31 December 2024: TL 600.000).

Information on share capital increases from capital reserves during the current period

None.

Information on capital commitments, the purpose and the sources until the end of the fiscal year and
the subsequent interim period

None.

) | s,
The effects of anticipations based on the financial figures for prior periods regarding the ank’sm;‘._
profitability and liquidity, and possible effects of these future assumptions on the Ba i

uncertainties at these indicators

None.
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INTERIM PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2025
(Amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL") unless otherwise indicated.)

INFORMATION AND DISCLOSURES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Il Explanations and notes related to liabilities (continued)

Information on shareholders’ equity (continued)

The summary information regarding the privileges granted to shares representing the share capital
None.
Information on securities value increase fund
31 March 31 December
2025 2024
TL FC TL FC

Securities at fair value through other comprehensive income (70.898) 12.488 (17.916) 10.588

Valuation (70.898) 15.328 (17.916) 15.126
Currency translation differences - - - -
Deferred tax - (2.840) - (4.538)
Total (70.898) 12.488 (17.916) 10.588

Information on profit reserves

In accordance with the decision of the General Assembly on 27 March 2025, the amount of retained earnings
TL 57.548 transferred to legal reserves and the amount of TL 1.093.419 transferred to other retained earnings

account within the total amount of TL 1.150.967.
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INFORMATION AND DISCLOSURES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Explanations on off-balance sheet commitments

The disclosures and relevant notes regarding the unconsolidated off-balance sheet commitments prepared by
the Bank are as follows.

1. Explanations on liabilities in off-balance sheet commitments

1.1 Type and amount of irrevocable commitments

1.2,

13

1.4.
1.4.1

None.

Non-cash loans including guarantees, bank acceptances, collaterals and others that are accepted as
financial commitments and other letter of credits

31 March 2025 31 December 2024

Letter of guarantees 6.191.086 4.882.084

Bank acceptances and collaterals -
Letter of credits - =
Other letter of guarantees for non-cash loans - =

Total 6.191.086 4.882.084

Final and provisional letter of guarantees, irrevocable guarantees and other similar commitments
31 March 2025 31 December 2024

Final letters of guarantee 4.147.607 3.759.269
Provisional letters of guarantee 33 1.513
Letters of guarantee for advances 218.284 382.563
Letters of guarantee given to custom offices 97.999 89.076
Other letter of guarantees for cash loans 1.727.163 649.663

Other letter of guarantees -

Total 6.191.086 4.882.084

Information on non-cash loans

Total amount non-cash loans

31 March 2025 31 December 2024

Non-cash Loans Given against Cash Loans 1,727.163 649.663
With Original Maturity of 1 Year or Less Than | Year - -
With Original Maturity of More Than 1 Year 1.727.163 649.663

Other Non-cash Loans 4.463.923 AT 45230.421

Pl W s

Total 6.191.0867/ « __4.882.084
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INTERIM PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2025
{Amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL”) unless otherwise indicated.)

INFORMATION AND DISCLOSURES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

111 Explanations on off-balance sheet commitments (continued)
Information on non-cash loans (continued)
1.4.1 Information on risk concentration on a sector basis of the non-cash loans

The relevant information has not been prepared in accordance with Article 25 of the Communique on Financial
Statements to be Disclosed to the Public by Banks and Related Disclosures and Notes.

Information on derivative transactions

3. Information on contingent liabilities and contingent assets

None.

Explanations on the activities carried out on behalf and account of other persons

None.
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INFORMATION AND DISCLOSURES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (continued)

IV. Explanations and notes related to the statement of profit or loss
The disclosures and relevant notes regarding the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss prepared by the
Bank are as follows.
1. Information on interest income
1.1. Information on interest income on loans
31 March 2025 31 March 2024
TL FC TL FC
Interest income on loans 613.601 205.717 80.959 82.282
Short-term loans 613.601 205.717 80.959 82.282
Medium and long-term loans - - - -
Intervest on loans under follow-up = - - ]
Premiums received E = = 3
Total 613.601 205.717 80.959 82.282

1.2. Information on interest income on banks

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

TL FC TL FC
From the CBRT - 38 - 66
From Domestic Banks 31.204 577 48.959 1.254
From Foreign Banks - - - -
From Headquarters and Branches Abroad - - - -
Total 31.204 615 48.959 1.320

1.3. Information on interest income on marketable securities

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

TL FC TL FC
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss o =
Financial assets at fair value through
other
comprehensive income 46.745 4.599 87.593 3.932
Total 46.745 4.599

1.4 Information on interest income received from associates and subsidiaries

None.
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INFORMATION AND DISCLOSURES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS (continued)

Explanations and notes related to the statement of profit or loss (continued)

Information on interest expenses

Information of interest expenses on borrowings

31 March 2025 31 March 2024
TL FC TL FC
From the CBRT - - - -
From Domestic Banks - - - -
From Foreign Banks - 104.636 - 2.214
From Headquarters and Branches Abroad - - - -
Total - 104.630 - 2.214
2.2 Information on interest expenses given to associates and subsidiaries
31 March
31 March 2025 2024
TL FC TL FC
Interest expenses given to associates and 34.371 E
subsidiaries” = -
Total 34.371 - - -

* Represents interest given to Destek Yatinm Menkul Degerler Anomim Sirket

2.3 Information on interest expenses given to securities issued

31 March 2025

31 March 2024

TL FC TL FC
Interest expenses on securities issued 55.123 88.961 - 61.001
Total 55.123 88.961 - 61.001

2.4 Information on interest expenses given to money market and relevant transactions

31 March 2025

31 March 202

TL FC TL FC
Interest expenses from Takasbank and relevant transactions  11.738 8.818 .
Interest expenses from reverse repo transactions 8.716 6 5.818 1C
Total 20.454 6 14.636 14

Information on dividend income

None.
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INFORMATION AND DISCLOSURES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Explanations and notes related to the statement of profit or loss (continued)

Information on trading profit/(loss) (Net)

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Profit 4.218.143 3.504.721
Income From Capital Market Transactions 54413 59.399
Income From Derivative Financial Transactions 2.484.028 2.468.907
Foreign Exchange Gains 1.679.702 976.415
Loss (-) (4.301.748) (3.072.540)
Loss from Capital Market Transactions (812) (840)
Loss from Derivative Financial Transactions (2.401.033) (2.386.598)
Foreign Exchange Loss (1.899.903) (685.102)
Trading profit/(loss), net (83.605) 432.181

Explanations on other operating income

As of 31 March 2025, the Bank has total other operating income amounting to TL 38.668. The amount of TL
30.915 is arising from issued securities, TL 7.697 is arising from prior period adjustments and TL 56 from
other (31 March 2024: TL 1.209 sale of motor vehicles and TL 459 from other).

Provision expenses related to loans and other receivables of the Bank

In accordance with the authorisation on 21 February 2022 from BRSA, the Bank calculates its general loan
provisions within the scope of the 10th, 11th, 13th and 15th articles of the regulation, not with the expected
credit losses under TFRS 9.

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Specific provisions -
12 month expected credit loss -
Significant increase in credit risk -
Non-performing loans - -

General provisions 61.358 67.452

Impairment on marketable securities -

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - -

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income - -

Impairment on investments in associates, subsidiaries and joint

ventures
Associates - -
Subsidiaries -
Joint ventures -

Other - -

Total 61.358
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INFORMATION AND DISCLOSURES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Explanations and notes related to the statement of profit or loss (continued)

Information related to other operating expenses

31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Provision for employment termination benefits 1.857 -
Bank social aid fund deficit provision - -
Impairment Expenses of Property, Plant and Equipment -
Depreciation Expenses of Property, Plant and Equipment 6.814 2.757
Impairment Expenses of Intangible Assets . -
Goodwill Impairment Expenses - -
Amortization Expenses of Intangible Assets 4.358 1.368
Impairment Expenses of Equity Participations accounted for

using the Equity Method - -
Impairment Expenses of Assets Held for Sale - -
Depreciation Expenses of Assets Held for Sale - -
Impairment Expenses of Non-Current Assets Held for Sale and

Discontinued Operations - -
Other Operating Expenses 29.537 18.964

Leases from TFRS 16 Exemptions - 3.708
Maintenance and repair expenses 207 370
Advertisement and promotion expenses 1.448 6035
Other 27.882 14.281

Loss on Sales of Assets - -
Other 9.980 11.272
Total 52.546 34.361

As of 31 March 2025, other expenses include audit and consultancy fee amounting to TL 5.094,, adjustments for retained carnings
amounting to TL 4.538 and other amounting to TL 348. In addition, other operating expenses include taxes, duties and charges
amounting to TL 4.000, communication expenses amounting to TL 5.722, computer equipment costs amounting to TL 13.669 and
other amounting to TL 4.491 (31 March 2024: Participation of Payment and Electronic Money Institutions in the FAST System of the
CBRT amounting to TL 51, audit and consultancy fee amounting to TL 2.732 and prior period adjustments amounting to TL 8.249
and other amounting to TL 240. Other operating expenses include computer equipment costs amounting to TL 6.605, communication
expenses amounting to TL 3.008, taxes, duties and charges amounting to TL 2.507 and other operating expenscs amounting to TL
2.161).

Information on income/(expense) from continuing and discontinued operations before tax

As of 31 March 2025, the Bank’s profit before tax from continuing operations is amounting to TL 417.152
(31 March 2024: TL 497.679). The Bank has no discontinued operations.

Information on tax provision of continuing and discontinued operations

As of 31 March 2025, the Bank has current period tax expense from continuing operations amounting to TL
164.252 (31 March 2024: TL 157.208). The Bank has no discontinued operations.

68



Iv.
10.

11.
11.1.

11.2.

12.

VL

CONVENIENCE TRANSLATION OF THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ORIGINALLY ISSUED IN TURKISH

DESTEK YATIRIM BANKASI ANONIM SiRKETI

NOTES TO THE UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS OF AND FOR THE
INTERIM PERIOD ENDED 31 MARCH 2025
(Amounts are expressed in thousands of Turkish Lira (“TL") unless otherwise indicated.)

INFORMATION AND DISCLOSURES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Explanations and notes related to the statement of profit or loss (continued)
Information and explanations on operating profit/(loss) from continuing and discontinued operations

As of 31 March 2025, the Bank has profit before tax from continuing operations amounting to TL 417.152 (31
March 2024: TL 497.679). The Bank has current period tax expense from continuing operations amounting to
TL 164.252 (31 March 2024: TL 157.208). As of 31 March 2025, profit for the period amounting to TL

252.900 (31 March 2024: TL. 340.471).
Information profit/loss for the period

Explanation on the quality, amount and frequency of the figures of the income and expense stemming
from ordinary banking operations, if necessary to understand the performance of the Bank for the

current period

None.

Explanations on the changes in the estimations regarding the figures on the financial statements, if there
is a possibility that the profit and loss for the current or the following periods will be impacted

None.

If Other Items in the Profit or Loss Statement Exceed 10% of the Profit or Loss Statement Total, Sub-
Accounts Constituting At Least 20% of These Items

Other items included in the statement of profit or loss do not exceed 10% of total amount of statement of profit
or loss.

Explanations and notes related to statement of changes in equity

The relevant information has not been prepared in accordance with Article 25 of the Communiqué on Financial
Statements to be Disclosed to the Public by Banks and Related Disclosures and Notes.

Explanations and notes related to statement of cash flows

The relevant information has not been prepared in accordance with Article 25 of the Communiqué on Financial
Statements to be Disclosed to the Public by Banks and Related Disclosures and Notes.
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INFORMATION AND DISCLOSURES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

VII.  Explanations and notes related to risk group that the Bank belongs to

1 Information on the volume of transactions relating to the Bank’s risk group, outstanding
loan and deposit transactions and profit and loss of the period

a) Information on loans to the risk group that the Bank belongs to

Current period

Other Real and Legal
Investments in Direct and indirect  Persons that have been
associates, subsidiaries shareholders of the included in the Risk
Bank’s Risk Group and joint ventures Bank Group
- Cash Non-cash Cash _Non-cash Cash  Non-cash
Loans
Balance at the beginning of the .
period 480 7.635.355 4.054 - 3.598
Balance at the end of the
period 3.580 7.715.488 4.092 - 3.390
Interest and Commission Income
Received - 2 453.760 16 - 18
Prior period
Other Real and Legal
Investments in Direct and indirect Persons that have been
associates, subsidiaries shareholders of the included in the Risk
Bank’s Risk Group and joint ventures Bank Group
Cash Non-cash Cash Non-cash Cash  Non-cash
Loans
Balance at the beginning of the
period - 2.551.259 300 - 3.598
Balance at the end of the
period 480 7.635.355 4.054 - 3.598
Interest and Commission Income
Received - 932,504 20 - 72

2. Information on forward and option agreements and other similar agreements made with the Bank’s risk
group

Investments in Other Real and Legal
associates, Direct and indirect  Persons that have been
subsidiaries and joint shareholders of the included in the Risk
Bank’s Risk Group ventures Bank Group
Current Prior  Current Prior  Current Prior
period  period period period period period
Derivatives
Balance at the beginning of
the period - - 30.696.187 18.053.982
Balance at the end of the
period - - 36.583.035 30.696.187
Total profit/loss - - 191.834 249412
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INFORMATION AND DISCLOSURES RELATED TO UNCONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

VII. Explanations and notes related to risk group that the Bank belongs to (continued)
3. Information on issued securities with the Bank’s risk group

As of 31 March 2025, the amount of securities issued by the Group and purchased by Domine Europue Ltd.,
the related party, is amounting to USD 111.600 (31 December 2024: USD 116.600).

4. Information on the funds/ repurchase agreements (“Repos”) realised with the Bank’s risk group

As of 31 March 2025, the total amount of of funds/ repurchase agreements and transfers and relevant
transactions realised wit the related parties is amounting to TL 1.003.305 (31 December 2024: TL 777.325).

Key management compensation

As of 31 March 2025, benefits provided to the Bank’s key management personnel is amounting to TL 15.581
(31 March 2024: TL 3.273).

SECTION SIX

Other Explanations

Explanations and notes related to domestic, foreign, off-shore branches and foreign representatives of
the Bank

The relevant information has not been prepared in accordance with Article 25 of the Communiqué on Financial
Statements to be Disclosed to the Public by Banks and Related Disclosures and Notes.

Explanations and notes related to events after the reporting period

None.
SECTION SEVEN

EXPLANATIONS ON INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REVIEW REPORT

II.

The relevant matters disclosed on independent auditor’s review report

The unconsolidated financial statements and notes to the unconsolidated financial statements as of and for the
interim period ended 31 March 2025 have been audited by Giireli Yeminli Mali Miisavirlik ve Bagimsiz
Denetim Hizmetleri Anonim Sirketi. The independent auditor’s review report dated 5 May 2025 is presented
preceding the unconsolidated financial statements.

Explanations and notes prepared by independent auditors

None.
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SECTION EIGHT
EXPLANATIONS ON INTERIM ACTIVITY REPORT

Assesment of the Chairman of the Board of Directors and the General Manager on the Interim
Operations and Evaluation Regarding Subsequent Periods

Message from the Chairman of the Board

[ncreased uncertainty regarding global economic and trade policies and geopolitical developments in recent
times have increased downward risks for global growth in 2025. Although a decline in global inflation has
been observed, high uncertainty and risks due to tariff wars have caused central banks to maintain their

cautious stance.

Due to the slowdown in demand caused by domestic and international developments in February and March
2025, Tiirkiye’s GDP growth is expected to be slightly below 3% in 2025. The current account deficit for 2025
is expected to be around USD 15 billion.

In recent periods, the Central Bank of the Republic of Tiirkiye (the “CBRT”) reduced the monthly growth
limit for foreign currency commercial loans to 0.5% to ensure that credit growth and composition remain in
line with the disinflation path. It also slightly restricted credit growth for Turkish lira commercial loans. Within
this framework, although commodity prices and oil prices are expected to have a positive impact on inflation,
the CPI inflation rate is expected to be around 30% at the end of 2025.

Looking at the banking sector, there are no negative developments in capital adequacy, asset quality, and
liquidity indicators. The banking sector's asset growth is expected to be close to the inflation rate. On the other
hand, considering the recent increases in interest rates on government securities, there has been some
deterioration in the first three months' profitability figures.

Destek Yatirim Bankasi focused on credit and foreign exchange transactions with corporate customers in the
first quarter of 2025. The loans account for approximately 70% of its assets, and there are no past due loan
receivables. The AT1 bond issuance we completed in February 2025, which was added to the Tier 1 capital,
has positive material influence on our capital adequacy and contributed to our asset growth target with a solid
financial structure. I would like to indicate my sincere thanks all our valuable stakeholders, business partners,
members of the board, managers and employees with whom we walked on our journey.

Altung KUMOVA

Chairman of the Board
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EXPLANATIONS ON INTERIM ACTIVITY REPORT (continued)

Assesment of the Chairman of the Board of Directors and the General Manager on the Interim
Operations and Evaluation Regarding Subsequent Periods (continued)

Dear Stakeholders,

As of 31 March 2025, the assets of Destek Yatirim Bankasi realised as amounting to TL 21.6 billion. The cash
loans considered as TL 15.2 billion, and the balance of the letter of guarantees that Destek Yatirnm Bankasi
provided is amounting to TL 6.2 billion. In addition, the securities portfolio amounted to TL 1.57 billion at
the end of the first quarter of 2023, representing 7.30% of total assets.

By the end of March 2025, the total amount of foreign currency-denominated borrowings from domestic and
foreign banks realised as TL 6.6 billion (approximately USD 175 million). Furthermore, the total amount of
issued bonds in foreign capital markets amounted to USD 111.6 million. Issuances were made in domestic
capital markets through asset-backed securities, financing bonds, and variable-rate financial instruments.

At the end of the first quarter of 2025, our Bank's capital adequacy ratio is realised at 21.31%. On the other
hand, the Bank's profit after tax provisions amounted to TL 252.9 million. Accordingly, average return on
equity (on an annual basis) was realised as 35.3%.

We plan to launch foreign trade transactions in the subsequent months. We will continue to offer our corporate
customers cash and non-cash loans, as well as foreign exchange spot, forward, and swap products. We also
aim to increase the volume and diversity of our individual customers in the private banking services we
launched last year. On the other hand, we will continue to diversify and expand our correspondent banking
network and borrowing facilities.

Ozgiir Akayoglu

General Manager
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